TURKEY

IRRIGATION MODERNIZATION PROJECT (P158418)

EREĞLİ – IVRIZ LEFT BANK IRRIGATION REHABILITATION PROJECT

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PLAN (ESMP)

AUGUST 2018



Table of Contents

1	INTRODUCTION	1
2	Project Description	2
2.1	Project Location and Current State	2
2.2	Project Components	4
3	Legal Framework and Applicable World Bank Safeguard Measures	7
3.1	Legal Framework	7
3.2	World Bank's Safeguard Policies	10
4	Environmental and Social Background	.14
4.1	Geographical Formations and Geology	.14
4.2	Water Resources and Hydrogeology	.14
4.3	Soil Composition	15
4.4	Climatic Features	15
4.5	Flora and Fauna	15
4.6	Sensitive Areas	16
4.7	Socioeconomic Status	16
4.7	1 Population	.16
4.7	2 Education	18
4.7	3 Healthcare Services	.18
4.7	4 Infrastructure Services	18
4.7	5 Sources of Livelihood	18
4.7	6 Land Use and Crop Pattern	.19
4.7	7 Land Acquisition	19
5	Environmental and Social Impacts	20
6	Mitigation Measures and Monitoring Plan	23
7	Roles and Responsibilities	.32
8	Public Consultation Meetings	34
9	Reporting	36



List of Tables

Table 1. Settlement units in the project area and their populations	.17
Table 2. Population growth rates and projections for settlement units in the project area	.17
Table 3. Measures to be taken during construction stage and Monitoring Plan	.25
Table 4. Monitoring Plan for Construction Stage	.29
Table 5. Roles and Responsibilities	.32
Table 6. Requirements of Reporting Process and Distribution of Roles	.36



List of Figures

Figure 1.	Ereğli-İvriz	Irrigation	Rehabilitation Project Area	3
-----------	--------------	------------	-----------------------------	---

List of Photos

Photo - 1. Akgöl Nature Conservation Zone (Ministry of Forestry and Water Affairs, 8 th Regional Directorate, 2016)11
Photo - 2. Akgöl Nature Conservation Zone (Ministry of Forestry and Water Affairs, 8 th Regional Directorate, 2016)
Photo - 3. İvriz Meeting (1)
Photo - 4. İvriz meeting (2)
Photo - 5. DSİ Presentation



Annexes

Annex- 1: Map Showing Konya Ereğli-İvriz Irrigation Area and Units	38
Annex- 2: Project Timetable	38
Annex- 3: Grievance Form/ Grievance Closeout Form	39
Annex- 4: Minutes of İvriz Public Consultation Meeting	41
Annex- 5: İvriz Public Consultation Meeting Participant List	45

Abbreviations

PSi

KELIRP	Konya Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Rehabilitation Project
ESMP	Environmental and Social Management Plan
WB	World Bank
DSİ	State Hydraulic Works Directorate General
EIA	Environmental Impact Assessment



1 INTRODUCTION

This Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) has been prepared to set out the measures required to be taken to eliminate and/or mitigate to acceptable levels the environmental and social impacts that may be caused during the pre-construction, construction and operation stages of Konya Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Rehabilitation Project (KELIRP) planned to be carried out under the Turkey Irrigation Modernization Project. This ESMP aims at clearly defining by whom, when, how often and how the measures will be taken during the pre-construction, construction and operation stages. This ESMP has been prepared in compliance with primarily the laws and regulations of Turkey, in addition to the World Bank's policies and safeguards measures.



2 Project Description

The infrastructure investments to be financed primarily under Component 1 of Turkey Irrigation Modernization Project (TIMP) include the replacement of existing open channel systems (channel and distribution structures) with closed and pressurized systems. This component will be implemented by DSI, and will also include improved operations and maintenance, and capacity-strengthening support for Water User Associations (WUAs). The sub-project covered by this ESMP and to be implemented under TIMP consists of the construction works to be carried out under the rehabilitation of existing Atabey Irrigation Scheme and the operation of the irrigation scheme.

Konya Ereğli İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme is currently in operation and it consists of a combination of canalettes and classical systems. Due to the drought in recent years, İvriz Dam + Groundwater combination partially suffices irrigation for the whole plain. At present, the classical + canalette system irrigates an area of 15.013 ha in the plain. Through this project, the irrigation network will be converted to a high-pressure pipe system, resulting in a gross irrigation area of 15.280 ha under current circumstances. If the high-pressure pipe system is installed, the whole area can be irrigated through sprinkler/drip irrigation systems with water from İvriz Dam + Groundwater resources.

The modernization project aims at addressing the operational problems, problems in the network, operation and maintenance difficulties in the channels, water leakages caused by the worn-out and deformed channels, and the failure to supply water to the desired points. As part of the construction activities, the existing open channels will be closed systems (piped and pressurized system) equipped with drip and sprinkle irrigation systems.

2.1 Project Location and Current State

The project area is located in Central Anatolia region, in the southeast of Konya Closed Basin, surrounded by Ereğli İvriz irrigation area, Tuzgölü, Konya Çumra, Ayrancı, Berdan, Seyhan-Çakıt and Bor-Emen projects, with a total drainage area of 3,837 km². The project area covers İvriz Creek and Çayhan Creek drainage areas in addition to Ereğli Plain. Ereğli district center and 20 villages are also covered by the project area. (see Figure 1).

Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Rehabilitation project covers 15.013 ha of land irrigated from İvriz Dam, which is the most important water supply source of the project and which was commissioned in 1985. The irrigation systems have become old and worn out. Since the existing irrigation system consists of a combination of classical and canalette system, it is too difficult to operate the system and it is not possible to control the water. The upstream water users use the water first and no water is left for the downstream water users. Even water distribution technicians and other operational staff cannot ensure a controlled and fair distribution of water among users. Since this system applies traditional flooding irrigation method, the diversion needs double the water need of plants. Furthermore, because the canalette networks pose only a small need for expropriation, it forms a barrier among various parts of scheme and blocks passages.

Furthermore, there has been a significant expansion in the population and settlement areas of settlement units within the project area of Ereğli İvriz Left Bank İrrigation Project, and a significant portion of left bank irrigation scheme has been left within settlement areas and/or adjacent areas as



the houses with gardens have become more and more widespread. The irrigation scheme and the urban settlement areas have to be separated to the extent possible.

There are 60 groundwater wells drilled at various times for Ereğli İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Project. Some of these wells were drilled by DSI and some other beyond the knowledge of DSİ. Furthermore, due to the changing climatic conditions and the increase in dry climatic conditions, the water potential is also expected to decrease. From this perspective, water conservation is of great importance. As a result of the studies conducted for revision in Ereğli Project Planning Revision Report, the water potential of İvriz Dam was found to have decreased by almost 100 percent.

Finally, in recent years, DSİ has turned its focus towards pressurized pipe systems in irrigation systems due to ease of operation, water conservation, moderns methods of application and the diversification in pipe types, and even it has requires the use of these pipes as a compulsory condition. Given that pressurized pipe systems allow water to be conveyed to consumers in a very short period of time and enable ease of operation besides water conservation, it has been decided to revise Konya Ereğli – İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme using this system.

At present, the system consists of Left-Bank Ereğli Irrigation, Adabağ Irrigation and Yıldızlı Irrigation facilities. Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank irrigation is supplied directly from İvriz Dam left-hand-side sluice outlet. Adabağ irrigation scheme is provided with water from the left bank main transmission line while Yıldızlı irrigation scheme is provided with water from hydropower plant transmission line. Adabağ Irrigation is operated as classical network; Left Bank Irrigation as classical network in main transmission line and large standby lines and the rest as canalette network; Yıldız Irrigation main transmission line as classical network and the rest as canalette network. The map showing Ereğli-İvriz Irrigation Scheme project area and its units is presented in Annex-1.



Figure 1. Ereğli-İvriz Irrigation Rehabilitation Project Area



2.2 Project Components

An irrigation area of 15280 ha will be irrigated under Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Rehabilitation Project based on new data, through the combination of İvriz Dam + Ground water resources. The facilities are described below in general terms:

- Left-bank main pipeline: It begins from the left-hand side offtake of İvriz Dam sluice outlet. Its initial capacity is 9,475 m³/sec, and follows the route of existing left-bank channel. It will serve the irrigation of a gross area of 15,280 ha. It feeds the left-bank regulation tank through the Y6 secondary line that diverts at km 8+570 of the main transmission line. The left-bank regulation tank also feeds this Y6 secondary line.
- 2. Left-bank irrigation network and engineering structures: A piped irrigation network is projected on a gross area of 15,280 ha, and the whole network is designed such that it will be supplied water from İvriz Dam. Water supply will be supplemented from the ground water wells.
- 3. Left-bank groundwater wells and collection network: On the left bank, the water to be taken from 60 ground water wells considered around the Y6 secondary line diverted from the main pipeline will be pumped to the joint collection lines and will be transmitted to the left bank pumping station collection pool through these lines. At the groundwater wells, Hm will be around 180-210 m and capacity will be 40 l/s. Groundwater wells have been designed in groups. Groundwater wells will be drilled with interspaces of minimum 400 meters in order to prevent interference. The areas suitable for operation with groundwater have been taken into consideration on the left bank. Necessary valve systems will be installed on the groundwater well lines and main collection lines, and pump sets will be activated and deactivated in line with water levels in the regulation tank and the irrigation water need, using SCADA system.
- 4. Left-bank pumping station: The left-bank pumping station is located around the Y6 secondary line diverted from the left bank main pipeline and the regulation tank. The pumping station consists of three units where pump flow rate is 0.80 m3/sec, net head is 32.0 m and installed power is 315 kW for each. Steel delivery pipe diameter is φ1118 and delivery pipe length is 335 m.
- 5. Left bank regulation tank: The left bank regulation tank has been selected with a volume that will ensure the regulation of left bank monthly maximum groundwater need for 6 hours. Its volume is approximately 20,500 m³. Maximum water elevation has been defined as 1,075.5 m. It is designed as a cut cone with a base area of ~3.830 m², top area as ~6.230 m2 and the bank height is 4.8 m. Active water level is identified as 4.2 m and a freeboard of 0.6 m has been allocated. Connection pipes from the Y6 secondary line diverted from the left-bank main pipeline and pump delivery line are connected to the regulation tank. It has been assumed that all of these lines will enter and exit at the maneuver chamber. The maneuver chamber size and elevations will be determined accordingly. Considering that the pipes entering and exiting the maneuver chamber are very large, the maneuver chamber must be minimum 3 meters lower than the regulation tank.
- 6. Operation and maintenance roads: Since Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Scheme already exists, operation and maintenance roads are present along the main and secondary channels and major canalettes and they properly operate. At the stage of converting Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme to high-pressure irrigation system, main pipeline will be laid parallel to the existing main channels

or existing roads. Similarly, secondary pipelines will also be laid along the existing roads or in place of existing canalette lines. Thus, it will be possible to use the existing road network and expropriation will be minimized. On the other hand, Konya-Ereğli, Karaman-Ereğli and Ereğli-Aksaray highways pass from the irrigation area and they further facilitate transportation. In addition, Konya-Ereğli-Adana railway also passes from the project area and the rehabilitation of the railway is ongoing.

7. Operation and maintenance buildings: Since Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme is in operation, DSİ has an irrigation operation unit in Ereğli district. The existing operation buildings and other units will be preserved and used as is. At present, Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank irrigation scheme is operated under the supervision of DSİ, by Left-bank WUA. It has been assumed that the system will be operated again by WUAs after the implementation of this project.

The project duration has been envisaged as six years, and the project timetable is presented in Annex-2. Since the project area is large and dispersed, construction activities will be carried out in groups so that the existing irrigation operations are not disrupted, to the extent possible.

Construction Site Facilities

Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank irrigation rehabilitation project construction facilities will be established at a suitable place in the vicinity of Ereğli district.

Construction energy and Machines

The energy to be needed for the construction of Ereğli-İvriz Left Bank irrigation rehabilitation network and related facilities will be supplied mostly from the district of Ereğli. The contractor will provide reserve generator and generator set.

The machinery and equipment to be needed during construction activities include excavator, truck, grader, dozer, scraper, ditcher, canal covering machines, pipe laying machines and aggregate preparation and concrete mixing facilities.

Borrow Pits

When determining the borrow pits, the pits closest to the project area have been explored. The materials needed for the project include some 280,000 m3 of sand for the cushion layer, approximately 420,000 m3 of sand-cobblestone for the coating layer, approximately 120,000 m3 of sand – cobblestone for concrete, stabilization materials of approximately 450,000 m3 and 200,000 m3 of rock material for the access roads to be built along the pipe route. The amount of permeable/semi-permeable material needed for the project is approximately 1,160,000 m³ and 200,000 m³ de of rock material. The results of natural construction material studies and laboratory tests are presented in "Konya-Ereğli İvriz Irrigation Project Natural Construction Materials Report" (November, 2008). Accordingly, the permeable material pits are located on İvriz Creek bed in the southeast of Ereğli district. Pit locations are included in Karaman N-32-a2 map section scaled 1/25.000 and have ben shown as A, B, C. The characteristics of borrow pits and the physical features of materials from these borrow pits as analyzed by laboratory tests are given below in detail.

Permeable Material Pit A: It is located in the southeast of the Ereğli district, and on the left bank of İvriz Creek, 11+500 km from the district center and 0+500 km from İvriz Dam. After scraping a 0.20



m layer, 1,110,000 m3 of material can be taken from this area through a 4 meter deep excavation. Based on an analysis of these results, it will be possible to supply some of the concrete materials, the materials for coating layer to be used in channels and the stabilization materials can be taken from this borrow pit.

Permeable Material Pit B: It is located in the southeast of the Ereğli district and on the right bank of İvriz Creek, 11+500 km from the district center and 0+500 km to İvriz Dam. After scraping a 0.20 m layer, 550,000 m3 of material can be taken from this area through a 4 meter deep excavation. Based on an analysis off these results, it will be possible to supply some of the cushion layer materials to be used in channels and the stabilization materials from this permeable material pit.

Permeable Material Pit C: It is located in the southeast of the Ereğli district and on the right bank of İvriz Creek, 11+500 km from the district center and 0+500 km from İvriz Dam. After scraping a 0.20 m layer, 200,000 m3 of material can be taken from this area through a 4 meter deep excavation. Based on an analysis off these results, it will be possible to supply some of the concrete materials, cushion layer materials to be used in channels and the stabilization materials from this permeable material pit.

Rock Pit T: It is 2+500 km in the northeast of the dam axis. Some of the road between the dam axis and the pit is asphalt coated and some of it is stabilized road. The pit has cracked, recrystallized limestone rocks with rather developed creme-beige joints. Based on an average thickness of 10 meters, approximately 1,000,000 m3 of rock material can be extracted from this rock pit.

Environmental impact assessment studies gave been conducted for the sand-cobblestone and limestone material pits. The Project Introduction File has been submitted to the Provincial Environment and Urbanization Directorate of Konya Governorate, and as a result of the EIA process, "Environmental Impact Assessment Not Necessary" decision was issued for both borrow pits on 09 October 2009. For the limestone material pit, an application will be filed with the Mining Affairs Directorate General as a result of the EIA process, in order to get Group II raw material production permit pursuant to the, Mining Law.

For the borrow pits mentioned above, DSI and the contractor will check the EIA and other legal requirements in the framework of the legislation and will ensure that they are revised as relevant. If any other borrow pit will be used, apart from those mentioned above, they will ensure that legal requirements are satisfied.

Other Facilities and Structures

Excavation materials storage areas may be needed to store the excess materials to come out from the channel excavation works during the project construction activities. If such an area is needed, DSİ will apply to the related municipality and/or Konya Provincial Environment and Urbanization Directorate for determination of the appropriate storage area.



3 Legal Framework and Applicable World Bank Safeguard Measures

This section sets out the requirements of laws and regulations as well as the World Bank safeguard measures taken into consideration when preparing the ESMP.

3.1 Legal Framework

ESMP has been prepared in compliance with the laws and regulations of Turkey primarily, as mentioned in Section 1.

Environment Law No. 2872, published in the Official Gazette of Republic of Turkey no. 18132 dated 11 August 1983, and amended through Law No. 6486 published in the Official Gazette dated 29 May 2013, is Turkey's primary framework for environmental legislation and is supported with many regulations. Article 10 of . Environment Law draws the overall framework of the Regulation on Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA Regulation), published in the Official Gazette no. 29186 dated 25 November 2014. However, irrigation projects are not covered by the Turkish EIA Regulation. For this reason, irrigation projects are exempted from the EIA process. On the other hand, as part pf the European Union membership process, Turkey has made many institutional and legal reforms. Thanks to these reforms, environmental legislation and environmental safeguards have been aligned with the international standards. The regulations concerning construction activities are listed below, but the applicable regulations are not limited to these.

- Waste Management Regulation, published in Official Gazette no. 29314 dated 2 April 2015;
- Regulation on the Incineration of Wastes, published in Official Gazette no. 27721 dated 6 October 2010,
- Regulation on the Control of Hazardous Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 25755 dated 14 March 2005, and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 28812 dated 5 November 2013;
- Regulation on the Control of Waste Oils, published in the Official Gazette no. 26952 dated 30 July 2008 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 28812 dated 5 November 2013;
- Regulation on the Control of Vegetable Oils, published in the Official Gazette no. 29378 dated 6 June 2015;
- Regulation on the Control of Package Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 28035 dated 24 August 2011;
- Regulation on the Control of Used Batteries and Accumulators, published in the Official Gazette no. 25569 dated 31 August 2004 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 28812 dated 5 November 2013;
- Regulation on the Control of Medical Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 25883 dated 22 July 2005 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 28948 dated 21 March 2014;

- Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 25406 dated 18 March 2004 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 27533 dated 26 March 2010;
- Regulation on the Control of Worn-out Tires, published in the Official Gazette no. 26357 dated 25 November 2006 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 29292 dated 11 March 2015;
- Regulation on Sanitary Landfilling of Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 26357 dated 27533 dated 26 March 2010 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 29292 dated 11 March 2015;
- Communiqué on the Recovery of Certain Non-Hazardous Wastes, published in the Official Gazette no. 27967 dated 17 June 2011 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 29292 dated 11 March 2015;
- Regulation on the Control of Waste Electrical and Electronic Devices, published in the Official Gazette no. 28300 dated 22 May 2012;
- Regulation on Control of Soil Pollution and Areas Contaminated by Point Sources, published in the Official Gazette no. 27605 dated 8 June 2010 and most recently revised in the Official Gazette no. 28704 dated 7 June 2013;
- Regulation on the Control of Water Pollution published in the Official Gazette no. 25687 dated 31 December 2014;
- Regulation on the Monitoring of Surface Waters and Ground Waters, published in the Official Gazette no. 28910 dated 11 February 2014;
- Regulation on the Protection of Ground Waters from Pollution and Degradation, published in the Official Gazette no. 28257 dated 07 April 2012;
- Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Control of Pollution Caused by Hazardous Substances on in Water and Environment, published in the Official Gazette no. 26005 dated 26 November 2005;
- Regulation on Waters for Human Consumption, published in the Official Gazette no. 25730 dated 17 February 2005
- Urban Wastewater Treatment Regulation, published in the Official Gazette no. 26047 dated 01 January 2006;
- Regulation on Evaluation and Management of Air Quality, published in the Official Gazette no. 26898 dated 06 June 2008;
- Regulation on the Reduction of Ozone-Depleting Substances, published in the Official Gazette no. 27052 dated 12 November 2008;
- Regulation on Evaluation and Management of Ambient Noise, published in the Official Gazette no. 27601 dated 04 June 2010;
- Regulation on Equipment and Protection Systems used in Potentially Explosive Environments, published in the Official Gazette no. 26392 dated 30 December 2006.

In addition to the environmental laws and regulations, there are many other laws involving environmental assessments directly or indirectly and thus are applicable to the project. Therefore, these laws and regulations also apply to the Project. These legal arrangements include the following:

- Law on Ground Waters (Law no. 167), published in the Official Gazette no. 10688 dated 23 December 1960;
- Law on the Protection of Cultural and Natural Assets (Law No. 2863), published in the Official Gazette no. 18113 dated 23 July 1983;
- Highways Traffic Law (Law No. 2918), published in the Official Gazette no. 18195 dated 18 October 1983;
- Highways Traffic Regulation, published in the Official Gazette no. 23053 dated 18 July 1997;
- Regulation on Opening and Operation of Workplaces, published in the Official Gazette no. 25902 dated 10 August 2005;
- Regulation on Buildings to be Constructed in Disaster Prone Areas, published in the Official Gazette no. 26582 dated 14 July 2007;
- Regulation on Buildings to be Constructed in Seismic Zones, published in the Official Gazette no. 26454 dated 06 March 2007;
- Regulation on the Transportation of Hazardous Substances via Highways, published in the Official Gazette no. 28801 dated 24 October 2013;
- Regulation on Principles and Procedures Governing the Production, Import, Transportation, Storage, Sale, Use, Disposal and Control of Non-Monopoly Explosives, Hunting Materials and the Similar, published in the Official Gazette no. 19589 dated 29 September 1987;
- Regulation on Septic Tanks Constructed in Districts without Sewerage System, published in the Official Gazette no. 13783 dated 19 March 1971.

The EIA Regulation in force requires limited and project-specific assessment of social impacts. In this context, it does not satisfy international standards. Still, through the reforms implemented in recent years, some legal arrangements that will help manage social impacts have been added to the legislation. Some of these are listed below:

- Law on Occupational Health and Safety (No. 6331), published in the Official Gazette no. 28339 dated 30 June 2012, and other relevant regulations
- Regulation on Sub-Employers, published in the Official Gazette no. 27010 dated 27 September 2008

In terms of involuntary resettlement, some of the relevant legal arrangements of Turkey are listed below:

- Expropriation Law no 2942, published in the Official Gazette no. 18215 dated 8 November 1983, and other relevant regulations
- Law No. 4650 on the Amendment on Expropriation Law, published in the Official Gazette no. 24393 dated 5 May 2011



Nature Conservation and National Parks Directorate General of Ministry of Forestry and Water Affairs governs protected areas in Turkey. On the other hand, for protection of physical cultural assets, the relevant legal arrangement is defined under Law No. 2863 dated 21.07.1983 on the Protection of Cultural and Natural Assets (revised through the amendment issued on 27.07.2004 dated Official Gazette). This legal arrangement is aligned with international standards. Furthermore, Regulation on Researches, Drillings and Excavations in Relation to the Cultural and Natural Assets, which was published in the Official Gazette No. 18485 dated 10.08.1994 define the procedures and obligations concerning the cultural and natural assets found out during construction. In addition, Regulation on Planning for Protected Areas dated 23.03.2012, Regulation on Identification, Registration and Approval of the Protected Areas dated 19.02.2013 and Regulation on Implementation of Environmental Protection Projects by Environmental Protection Agency for Specially Protected Areas (dated 24.0.21992) are the other arrangements within the scope of the legal framework on protected areas. DSI is responsible for the project to be implemented in compliance with the laws and regulations.

3.2 World Bank's Safeguard Policies

The World Bank's environmental and social safeguard policies require the borrower country to conduct an Environmental Assessment in compliance with the EIA Regulation and the World Bank's operational policy on environmental impacts (OP 4.01). In this direction, this Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) has been prepared to fulfill their requirements of the World Bank's policies on Environmental Assessment (OP 4.01) and Physical and Cultural Resources (OP 4.11). The objective of this plan is to assess the project according to its potential social and environmental impacts and define environmental and social management conditions.

OP 4.01 Environmental Assessment:

Activities carried out in the scope of simple construction works, by their nature, create environmental and social impacts which are not very critical, within the existing project boundaries. WB's Operational Policy on Environmental Assessment has to be applied even if the impacts are not very critical. Together with the implementation of OP 4.01, environmental and social management instruments have to be prepared.

The ESMF includes a consideration of the broader impacts of the transformation of the open-channel irrigation systems to "closed" water systems, as well as mitigation measures to address any negative impacts. Moreover, the ESMF aims to address water utilization and potential impacts on resource sustainability, communities and other water users.

The key social and environmental impacts that may be caused by the project are expected to affect the sensitive recipients near the project area (e.g. schools, hospitals, health centers, houses). In this context, the whole project area and surrounding areas have been evaluated in terms of vulnerable recipients. It is expected that the negative environmental and social impacts are limited to basic construction work impacts. In general, major impacts are related to excavation, waste disposal, disposal of demolished material, loss of topsoil and vegetation, dust formation, noise, occupational and community health and safety. Since it is anticipated that the sengative impacts are temporary and reversible, are mostly limited to the work site and that the irrigation modernization work is exempt



from EIA Regulation pursuant to the Turkish environmental legislation, the Konya-Ereğli-İvriz Irrigation Modernization Project is considered to be a Category B project.

Natural Habitats OP/BP 4.04:

The areas covered with agricultural lands within the project area of influence fall within Akgöl-Ereğli Reeds Nature Conservation Zone. According to the Provincial Environment Report, this area was declared a natural protection site in 1992, and nature conservation zone in 1995. Akgöl Wetland Protection Areas were discussed and adopted by the National Wetland Commission. The Wetland Management Plan has reached its final stage but the wetland has dried up. While the area was a critical place for waterfowls, the droughts in recent years and the construction of dams on creeks flowing into the area have led to the drying of the lake (see Photos 1 and 2). Only the sewerage wastes of Ereğli district are flowing into the lake. Therefore it is not expected to be affected negatively from the project.



Photo - 1. Akgöl Nature Conservation Zone (Ministry of Forestry and Water Affairs, 8th Regional Directorate, 2016)





Photo - 2. Akgöl Nature Conservation Zone (Ministry of Forestry and Water Affairs, 8th Regional Directorate, 2016)

Physical Cultural Resources OP/BP 4.11:

Triggering of this policy will depend on the outputs of the project preparation stage. The laws and practices in Turkey satisfy the requirements of WB. DSI is responsible for avoiding or mitigating impacts on physical or cultural resources of the financed projects. Therefore, DSI will not proceed with sub-project funding until all requirements of the Turkish legislation are met. Since the national legislation on the protection of cultural assets is strictly implemented, an additional condition beyond the WB safeguard policies is not expected. However, a chance find procedure including responsibilities for managing accidently discovered or chance find cultural artifacts, which will warn the supervision consultants and contractors about the steps to be followed, will be implemented. Additionally, all relevant official letters to be exchanged before or during construction activities will be recorded and annexed to periodic monitoring reports.



Involuntary Resettlement OP/BP 4.12:

The project involves the conversion of open channel systems (channels and distribution structures) with closed pressurized systems. The project team will assess whether the construction activities to be undertaken for the replacement or expansion of these channel systems would result in an involuntary land acquisition, land rental, temporary land use or crop loss, during the project preparation phase. OP 4.12 will be triggered if any such situation is identified.

Safety of Dams OP/BP 4.37:

The project uses İvriz Dam as the source of water supply. Although the project does not finance any activity related to the dam, the amounts of water to be taken from the dam will change as a result of the project. With regard to the subject matter, a World Bank Dam Safety Exert visited the site of İvriz Dam on 27 March 2018 and reported his conclusions. According to these results, there is no structural problem with the dam, and there is no crack that require urgent intervention either. However, procedures concerning dam safety need to be revised and the key areas of intervention include the improvement and rehabilitation of instrumentation and monitoring systems. The measures recommended specifically for İvriz Dam were shared with DSİ and DSİ will be responsible for the implementation of these measures, these measures can be summarized as follows:

- (i) While the reservoir was at its maximum operation level in 2016, some wet areas were seen on the left-hand brace. A piezometer will be placed at the depth of 25 m in this area.
- (ii) The slope washing sediments accumulated on the right-hand side of the spillway canal will be cleaned.
- (iii) Operation and maintenance instructions will be revised.
- (iv) A dam record book will be prepared.
- (v) An emergency response plan will be prepared.
- (vi) An access road will be constructed to remove the accumulated sediments and check the sedimentation levels.

Projects on International Waterways OP/BP 7.50:

İvriz Dam basin is a closed basin and is not an international waterway.

In addition to applicable OP's presented above, the World Bank Group General Environmental Health and Safety Guidelines are also applicable for this project and shall be followed when relevant.



4 Environmental and Social Background

This section discusses the current environmental and socioeconomic characteristics of project area and its environs. The information provided in this section has been compiled from the studies conducted and results reports prepared so far in the region.

4.1 Geographical Formations and Geology

The project area is surrounded by Taurus Mountains in the south and southeast, and hills of Karacadağ Range of Mounts in the north. the highest hill is Aydost Mount on the Taurus (3488 m). Ereğli, Plain, which provides the land source for the project area, extends in south-west and north-east directions and its surface area is 250,000. the most important rivers are Delimahmutlar, İvriz and Çayhan creeks. Ereğli – Akgöl Marsh (200 km²) in the project area constitutes the discharge leg of Niğde – Bor basin, Ereğli, Ayrancı and Karaman projects. Another noteworthy marsh is Gölbaşı Reeds close to Adabağ Village.

The first sedimentary unit of project area is Halkapınar formation. This unit comes over Permian aged limestones with unconformity. Halkapınar formation consists of flysch type turbiditic sediments which are Sub-Paleocene / Sub-Eocene aged, interfingered with volcanic rocks. In the south and southeast of Ereğli, there are Upper Eocene-Oligocene aged white soil formation. White soil formation consists of anhydrite and the intercalation of limestone-sandstone-anhydrite. On upper layers, Miyocene - Pliocene aged Cihanbeyli formation, which consists of terrestrial clasts and which is commonly seen in the area, covers the lower units with angular unconformity. Alluvial cover spreads over the top of all these units. Of these sediments, those which are up to the Upper Eocene time range are marine, those which are between Upper Eocene and Pliocene time ranges are terrestrial.

The project area and its close vicinity are located on the north side of the Central Taurus section of 'Taurids'' main tectonic unit which faces towards Anatolids. The units surfacing in the region are included in the 'Bolkardağı Unit'' of the tectono-stratigraphic units of the Taurus Mountains. The area has gained its tectonic position largely through the Alpine orogenesis movements, similar to the Taurus Mounts. the region has gained a folded structure through these movements. Permian aged Bolkar Group forms a large anticlinal structure in the study area.

A vast majority of the project area falls in the 5th degree seismic zone, while the southeast parts of the project area including İvriz Dam falls in the 4th degree seismic zone, according to the Map of Seismic Zones published by Ministry of Public Works and Settlement.

4.2 Water Resources and Hydrogeology

According to the hydrogeological studies conducted earlier in the project area, groundwater reserves were found in the area amidst Bulgurluk, Kamışlıkuyu, Göndelen and Aziziyevillages in the north of the irrigation area. However, since a long time has passed since these studies and given the severe drought experienced by the region in recent years, it is estimated that the static level and yield have decreased significantly. It has been reported that there are approximately 3,000 licensed and unlicensed ground water wells in the project area. There are 156 wells operated by DSİ.



İvriz Dam, constructed on İvriz Creek inn 1985, is the main source of water supply under the project. Its drainage area is 336 km², and the dam type is earth-fill, with a reservoir capacity of 80 million m3. Delimahmutlar creek and İvriz stream unite to form İvriz Creek. İvriz Dam serves irrigation and flood protection purposes. The drinking water need of Ereğli district is supplied from the catchment near İvriz springs. Water will be supplied from İvriz Damn to the sugar factory for a period of six months between October and March. Furthermore, the forebay pool of hydroelectric power plant on the upstream of İvriz Dam meets the water needs of Yıldızlı irrigation scheme using the existing Yıldızlı Main Channel.

As mentioned earlier, the most important rivers in the project area are Delimahmutlar, İvriz and Çayhan Creeks. İvriz stream and Delimahmutlar creek are categorized as second class irrigation water (C_2S_1) .

4.3 Soil Composition

The soil composition in the project area consists mainly of alluvial and colluvial soil in terms of formation. The alluvial soils in base lands are comprised of marl and lime and have accumulated on the ground. Colluvial soils have been formed through the crushing and separation of main material on the slope lands in time.

A significant part of the project area consists of heavy-textured soil. At places where soil cultivation continues, granular structures are present in upper layers, and block structures in lower layers. In pastures, since the soil is heavy-textured, block structures can be seen at the depth of 150 cm.

Since the soil of Ereğli Plain settle on a ground comprising of lime and marl, and since more than half of the soil slowing den the slopes contains lime, laboratory analyses revealed high amounts of lime even on irrigated lands. Due to this soft and arable lime, the predominant mineral in the plain's soils is calcium.

4.4 Climatic Features

Continental climate prevails in the project area which is located in the central-south part of Central Anatolia Region. Winters are hard, cold and snowy, and summers are hot and dry. Winter and spring precipitations are characteristic and the area has one of the lowest precipitation levels in Turkey (295 mm/year). Since the region is surrounded by high mountains, the mild and humid air waives from the seas cannot reach the area. Al altitude rises towards the east, the degree of continentality increases. Annual average temperature is 11.5 °C in Ereğli. Maximum wind speed has been recorded as 34 m/sec and its direction as south-southwest; average relative humidity rate is 62%.

4.5 Flora and Fauna

The dominant vegetative cover in the broad lands within the provincial boundaries of Konya is steppe. The climate prevalent in the plan's base parts, and the effects of soil and geomorphological characteristics have reflected onto the flora. Furthermore; Anthropogenic steppes have formed in the forest areas destroyed by human being for various reasons since the earliest ages. There are also bush formations scattered in steppes. Cultivated plants cover a large area in the agricultural lands in plains.



Most important pones of these crops are grains, legumes and sugar beet. Cultivated plants cover an area of 64 %. With this rate, Konya is among the provinces with largest agricultural land in Turkey. Konya province is poor in terms of forest area. Only 12 percent of its surface area is covered by forests.

A significant part of the project area seems to be consisting of areas not qualifying as wetland any more. The dominantly prevalent plant species in the project area are Arthrocnemum glaucum (Del.) Und-Stern., Halimione portulacoides (L.) Aellen, Halocnemum strobilaceum (Pall.) Bieb., Petrosimonia brachiata (Pallas) Bunge, Salicornia prostrata Pall. Limonium gmelini (Willd.) O. Kuntze, Limonium sieberi (Boiss.) O.Kuntze, Limonium virgatum (Wild.) Fourr. and Junsuc acutus L. None of these species is listed in IUCN and they are not under protection pursuant to Bern or CITES.

The most noteworthy fauna species include rabbit, fox, wolf, waterfowls, partridge, quail, stark, avian predators such as eagle, falcon, kestrel, hawk, squirrel, turtle and crab species.

AS a result of the field studies conducted to identify biodiversity of reptile species in the province of Konya, as part of Provincial Environment Report studies, 31 (1 terrapin, 1 tortoise, 15 lizards and 14 snakes). Furthermore, 8 amphibian species were identified as a result of field studies. With regard to mammals, 50 species were identified from the ordos of Euplipotyphla, Chiroptera (bat), Logomorpha (rabbitish), Rodentia (rodents), Carnivora (carnivores) and Artiodactyla.

4.6 Sensitive Areas

Within the project's area of influence, the regions where agricultural lands are located remain within Akgöl-Ereğli Reeds Nature Conservation Zone. According to the Provincial Environment Report, this area was declared a natural protection site in 1992, and nature conservation zone in 1995. Akgöl Wetland Protection Areas were discussed and adopted by the National Wetland Commission. The Wetland Management Plan has reached its final stage but the wetland has dried up. While the area was a critical place for waterfowls, the droughts in recent years and the construction of dams on creeks flowing into the area have led to the drying of the lake. Only the sewerage wastes of Ereğli district are flowing into the lake. therefore it is not expected to be affected negatively from the project.

4.7 Socioeconomic Status

4.7.1 Population

The biggest settlement unit within the project area is Ereğli District. The settlement units on the left bank, and their populations are shown in Table 1. The populations of Cinler, Barbaros, Çömlekçi, Fatih, O.Gazi, Y.Bağlar and Yunuslu neighborhoods, which are not shown in these tables and are attached to Ereğli district center are also included in the population of Ereğli(center).



Population Censuses							
	Settlement Units	1990	1997	2000			
	Adabağ	348	308	284			
	Akhüyük	232	262	207			
	Alhan	1524	1296	1316			
	Belceağaç	638	688	676			
	Böğecik	325	325	325			
	Burhaniye	241	222	256			
	Çimencik	967	775	897			
	Göktöme	175	157	147			
	Karaburun	461	487	461			
k	Kargacı	426	489	508			
Left bank	Sarıca	233	235	250			
eft	Sarıtopallı	330	358	352			
Γ	Selvili	698	557	636			
	Taşağıl	573	528	550			
	Ulumeșe	225	225	214			
	Yazlık	540	509	483			
	Yıldızlı	449	386	332			
	Melicek	646	590	596			
	Orhaniye	2821	3062	3137			
	Türkmen	565	609	588			
	Ereğli (center)	74283	77779	77779			
	TOTAL	862700	89847	89994			

Table 1. Settlement units in the project area and their populations

Studies have been conducted to calculate population growth rates and population projections for 2020 and 2030 and the results are presented in Table 2. Accordingly, the left-bank population will be 96,728 and 100,480 for 2020, and 2030, respectively.

Table 2. Population growth rates and projections for settlement units in the project area

	Population	Population forecasts		
	growth rate (%)	2020	2030	
Left bank	0.38	96,728	100,480	

Average farmer household size has been found to be 4,72 people on the left bank. Gender distribution of average population in the left bank has been determined as 46.40 % female and 53.60 % male. Of the total population, 26.91 percent is in the age range 0-14 years, and 66.53 percent in the age range 15-49 years.



4.7.2 Education

There is a primary school in all of the settlement units other than Gökteme, Burhaniye, Karaburun, Yıldızlı, Adabağ, Sarıca villages. There are 168 teachers and 4,178 students in these schools.

There are 5 vocational secondary schools, 8 general secondary schools and 67 primary schools in Ereğli district center. Furthermore there is Ereğli Vocational Higher School attached to Konya Selçuk University.

There is a high public interest in education, and university students usually prefer Konya Selçuk University and other universities in big cities.

4.7.3 Healthcare Services

In the project area, villages and neighborhoods receive healthcare services from the health institutions in Ereğli district center and Konya. There are a total of 8 local health centers in the project area. IN Ereğli district center, there is 1 state hospital, 2 private hospitals and 3 local health centers.

4.7.4 Infrastructure Services

As a result of field studies, it has been found that all settlement units in the project area have sufficient drinking water network. Transportation facilities are rather good in the project area. Ereğli-Konya section of D330 Highway is 143 km long. Ereğli district center is 33 km away from the Ankara-Adana E90 Highway. Furthermore, Haydarpaşa-Konya-Adana Railway also passes from Ereğli district. Most of the rural roads within the project area are asphalt coated, and there is no access problem in winter or summer.

Since the project area is Ereğli district and its close vicinity, communication facilities are rather good. In addition to PTT organization, people have a broad access to mobile communication as well.

4.7.5 Sources of Livelihood

Agriculture: The primary economic activities in the project area are plant production and animal husbandry. However, the water scarcity experienced in recent years and the organization al and administrative problems of water user associations, have resulted in a low irrigation efficiency in the region. As a result, there are lands were grain products are cultivated in addition to fallowed lands.

Sugar beet cultivation has lost its long-lasting driver in the region and has become less preferable by farmers as input price parity has been impaired. The privatization-focused sugar policy pursued in recent years has resulted in the limitation of sugar beet cultivation areas. The only buyer of sugar beet grown in the area is Ereğli Sugar Factory.

All of the cultivated plants are irrigated through canalette irrigation, DSİ wells or personal well, albeit at an insufficient level. The unirrigated lands are fallowed. Fodders plants cultivated in the region include silage corn, oat and alfalfa. Flooding irrigation method is applied for all plants.

Animal husbandry: Animal husbandry has developed considerably in the project area, including both cattle and sheep -goat. The region has a significant share in Turkey's dairy products market.

There are four agricultural development cooperatives, one agricultural credit cooperative and three water user associations with a total of 150 members in the region. T.C. Ziraat Bankası is one of the key institutions supporting farmers with loans in the project area.



Industry and Trade: Agricultural industry has not developed much in the project area. There are 2 cold air stores, 5 milk collection centers, 2 dairy farms, 1 ice plant in the irrigation area, in addition to bulgur and fodder factories in Ereğli district center. Ereğli Sugar Factory is the biggest industrial facility of the district. In Ereğli Organized Industrial Zone, there are 19 companies operating in the food sector, 1 company in organic fertilizer and 3 companies in feed industry.

Similar to industry, trade is also based on plant and animal products. Currently, sugar beet, grains, chickpea, potato, vegetables, sunflower and fruit are produced for the market, while fodder plants are consumed within farms themselves. Trade hubs in the region are Ereğli, Karaman districts and Konya province. It is also possible to sell products to other cities.

Mining: There is no mineral reserve operated within the project area. However, there are diasporite, magnesite, celestite, barite, talk, cement raw material and sand-cobblestone beds in Ereğli district.

Tourism: There is no tourism activity within the irrigation area. However, İvriz Rock Monument, one of the first agricultural monuments on earth, dating back to the Pre-Hittites, is close to dam axis.

4.7.6 Land Use and Crop Pattern

The cultivation and planting areas used for dry and irrigated agriculture have been identified. Then the total area found has been compared with the values obtained through map measurements to find the crops cultivated at present and their cultivation rates. At present, on the right bank, 44 percent of lands is used for grain cultivation using classical piped system, and fallow rate is 16 percent. Chickpea has a rate of 2 percent, silage corn 5 percent, sugar beet 7 percent, sweetcorn 6 percent, dry bean 4 percent, vegetable 3 percent, sunflower 2 percent, black carrot 2 percent, alfalfa 12 percent, and fruit 3 percent. Furthermore, pastures have e rate of 4 percent and drylands 20 percent.

In the left bank, 24 percent of the lands is used for grains and fallow rate is 13 percent. Chickpea has a rate of 2 percent, oat 4 percent, silage corn 7 percent, sugar beet 9 percent, sweetcorn 2 percent, dry beans 2 percent, vegetable 8 percent, potato 1 percent, black carrot 2 percent, alfalfa 5 percent, and fruit 16 percent. Furthermore, pastures have e rate of 5 percent and drylands 18 percent. As a result of survey studies, it has been found that these areas include lands categorized as ST (fruit) and ST (irrigated farm). In particular, the ST -Fruit land category primarily involves cherry and sour cherry production. ST (irrigated farm) lands category involves wheat, sugar beet, vegetable and sweetcorn production.

4.7.7 Land Acquisition

Land consolidation practices have been initiated by the General Directorate of Agricultural Reform in the facility where classical and canalette networks are in operation. Land consolidation practices must be completed for the whole project area. Since land consolidation services have been transferred to DSİ with the Law no 7139 published on the Official Gazette dated April 28, 2018 and numbered 30405, the land consolidation works must be completed by DSİ. Where consolidation works will not be sufficient, some of the lands might be acquired via expropriation. In case of expropriation, DSI will prepare a Land Acquisition Plan.



5 Environmental and Social Impacts

<u>Air Quality:</u> Dust formation is expected during the construction and site preparation stages of the project due to the stripping of top soil layer and other excavation works. In addition, during the production of sand-cobblestone and limestone materials, dust formation will occur when extracting, loading and transporting the materials. The provisions of Regulation on Control of Air Pollution from Industrial Sources and Regulation on the Evaluation and Management of Air Quality will be complied with when operating the borrow pits. These impacts are envisaged to be temporary and reversible. Furthermore, exhaust emissions are expected to originate from construction machines and equipment. necessary measures will be taken against dust and exhaust gas emissions. In this scope, construction machines and equipment will be periodically maintained and controlled. Thus, these impacts are expected to be at a low level. However, in case the emission levels are negatively affecting the nearby communities or other sensitive receptors, further corrective measures will be taken.

<u>Noise:</u> The noise to be generated by construction equipment and vehicles is expected to negatively affect the sensitive receptors in the close vicinity of the project. In order to minimize the impact, construction activities will be carried out during daytime hours (07:00 - 19:00). In addition, noise levels will be monitored at the sensitive receptors regularly and necessary mitigation measures will be taken if required.

<u>Water and wastewater</u>: Water need will arise mostly from daily domestic water needs of employees in the camp site, construction site and material pits. In addition, water will be used for concrete mixing and curing operations, washing the machines, and watering the materials and roads against dust formation. DSI and the contractor are responsible for supplying water without stressing the groundwater and surface water sources for domestic use and concrete preparation works. The quality of the water (for domestic use and concrete preparation works) will be monitored regularly.

Wastewaters will generally be originated from the borrow pits and campsites in domestic wastewater form. These wastewaters shall be either stored in impermeable septic tanks in compliance with local regulations and the Bank requirements, will be regularly stored by licensed companies and will finally be discharged to receiving bodies after being treated. The water to be used for spraying process to prevent dust formation in the project site cannot be recycled as wastewater. During the operation stage, domestic wastewaters will be disposed in compliance with the Regulation on the Control of Water Pollution.

There are 156 wells operated by DSI and approximately 3,000 other private wells in the irrigation area. Irrigation modernization will reduce irrigation demand to 154 million m3; while 80 million m3 s supplied from İvriz Dam, groundwater use will be reduced by 33 percent. The project is expected to increase total irrigation area to 39,750 ha, and groundwater support will be limited to 140 wells operated by DSİ only.

Community health and safety: The campsites will introduce workforce to the nearby communities, who will inevitably interact with each other. Thus, the location of campsites must be positioned as far possible as from the local communities. Furthermore, workforce will be informed about the behavioral and ethics code through their contractual obligations.

Furthermore, construction activities will result in increase in the local traffic sue to the vehicles going in and coming out from the construction site. The construction sites could potentially cause risk of

accidents for local people, compromising community health and safety, if not fenced appropriately and marked with appropriate warning signs.

<u>Occupational Health and Safety:</u> The construction activities may pose risk to workers' health and safety if necessary precautions are not taken. In this context, DSI and contractors will be responsible for supplying a safe and healthy working environment for the workers. The workers should be aware of their job descriptions, responsibilities and relevant occupational health and safety risks . Necessary personal protective equipment and job-specific and occupational safety trainings will be given to the workers, regularly. The campsites should also be equipped with necessary facilities for the workers to meet all their needs.

<u>Hazardous materials</u>: For the time being, fuel filling and vehicle maintenance activities are not planned to be carried out on the construction site within the scope of the project. However, such need may arise if heavy vehicles are used on the construction site. DSI and contractors will be informed about the storage and sue of hazardous materials to be used in this scope and will take necessary measures. Furthermore, chemicals spills and other potential hazardous substance accidents will be added to the possible scenarios under emergency management plans, and the required equipment will always be kept ready and relevant drills will be carried out regularly.

<u>Waste management:</u> The modernization of open channel irrigation system includes removal of the existing materials and pipes from the construction sites, eventually making them idle. The pipes and other materials that become idle need to be appropriately stored and finally disposed of in accordance with local regulations and the Bank requirements. As the topsoil will be stored and reused for rehabilitation works after construction, no excavation waste is expected to be generated. However, in case the excavated material will be excessive, coordination with relevant authorities for appropriate disposal of excavation material shall be established.

In addition to excavation wastes, domestic and hazardous wastes are also expected to be generated during construction. These wastes will be stored separately at the construction and camp sites, as required by local regulations, and will be transferred to / disposed of by licensed facilities. DSI and its contractor will be responsible for coordinating with these licensed companies and ensuring that wastes are disposed/recycled in compliance with relevant local regulations and the Bank requirements.

<u>Natural Habitats:</u> Project's area of influence remains within Akgöl-Ereğli Reeds. However, as mentioned above, this area has dried and only the sewerage wastes of Ereğli districts are discharged. For this reason, no negative impact is expected on natural habitats.

<u>Infrastructure</u>: Modernization works will require the use of existing access roads. The project design will also benefit from the ongoing land consolidation activities since it will allow for new common roads to be established to access each parcel that will also undergo the modernization activity. Damages to road surfaces during transport of heavy machinery will be rehabilitated by the construction contractor. Should any damages on infrastructure occur on private land due to construction, mitigation measures specified in the LAPF will be put into practice by the construction contractor. Any campsite that will be established during construction will secure its own infrastructure without placing an additional demand on community infrastructure during construction. Thus, impacts on local infrastructure are considered to be negligible.



<u>Land acquisition</u>: No physical resettlement activity is envisaged for the implementation of the project. However, depending on the construction activities, temporary or economic losses could occur, even if they will be minor. In line with the project principles, state-owned lands will be used to the extent possible by avoiding private properties and agricultural lands. However, where this is not possible, land acquisition action plans will be prepared and implemented for the project area, in compliance with the LAPF.

<u>Assets and land based livelihoods:</u> As there will be no physical displacement under the project; loss of structures and buildings are not expected. However, though kept to a minimum, the project may result in loss of agricultural land. The design of the subprojects considers following the existing irrigation network in addition to utilizing existing roads with minimum need for additional access roads. Depending on the status and current use of the land required for the project; loss of standing crops and trees with economic value is anticipated. To reduce the amount of land required, the land consolidation practices carried out earlier by MoFAL will be utilized. Furthermore, project activities are expected to also impact land based livelihoods since majority of the land subject to modernization is used for agricultural purposes. Measures to mitigate both loss of assets and livelihoods are discussed in detail under the LAPF and will be managed via LAPs for each scheme that necessitates land acquisition.

Farmers, local community and other stakeholders including vulnerable groups: Considering that the project could improve the efficiency of the existing irrigation system, it is expected to have a positive impact on local communities in general.

Agricultural workers (i.e. seasonal and daily workers, Syrian workers) and women engaged in agricultural practices who are also categorized as vulnerable groups may also be affected from the project since the project may result in limiting the labor demand for irrigation as well as cultivation and harvesting of products. Seasonal workers travel with their families and engage in farming as a family. In the area of the Project, where seasonal agricultural workers are used children do not work as paid labor however can assist their families while working together. This type of child labor is not a form of forced labor as the national labor law forbids worst forms of child labor. Hence, as per the Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP), continuous consultation both by DSI and WUAs will be carried out to inform all PAPs including vulnerable groups on project impacts and construction schedule as well as their rights for compensation should they suffer from loss of land or livelihood due to the project activities. Mitigation measures for such groups have been dealt within LAPF and site specific measures will be applied through LAPs.

<u>Gender Impact:</u> Irrigation modernization, with its expected change to higher value crops and modern technologies, thus provides an economic opportunity for women who play an active role in agriculture. There are no legal restrictions on female tenancy arrangements or land ownership. However, customary traditions limit women's cultivation of shared ancestral land. Land consolidation practices, on the other hand, may positively impact this situation as an opportunity is created for women to own consolidated parcels, which likely may lead to their increased participation in agricultural production. Female water users in the WUAs could be both tenants and land owners. Women's role in WUA management and decision making is thus extremely limited and is perceived to be a domain for men. Cultural factors and social norms also hinder women's participation in meetings and training events related to irrigated agriculture. In order to decrease women's hesitance to take part in WUA



management and decision making periodic stakeholder consultations will be arranged by WUAs and DSI field staff as part of irrigation modernization or regular WUA operations. With the collaboration and support of the Bank, DSI's field staff will design and deliver sensitization training on gender aspects of irrigation in the subject project. This training will support DSI field offices and the WUAs under their supervision to implement measures to narrow the above gender-gaps in line with the Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP), such as ensuring that WUA consultation meetings specifically for women will be held (before, during the land consolidation and after irrigation modernization). The training will also lay the foundation for WUAs to develop their own measures to encourage women involvement in WUA governance and measures to allow female farmers to benefit from services, like agricultural advice/training, delivered through the WUA, in collaboration with DSI (on-farm water management), and MoFAL. DSI will monitor gender disaggregated data in terms of the female water users benefiting from the Project, and gender-disaggregated feedback from the monitoring reports and surveys carried out in the subprojects. Where feasible, DSI's MIS (SUTEM) will ensure that some gender-disaggregated data will be collected.

Labor conditions, influx and child labor: A campsite will be established for the project area. Each campsite will include infrastructure such as water, electricity, sewage and communication network. The campsite will be accessible by road network and will use existing roads to the extent possible. In cases where accommodation is provided on-site, DSI will ensure that contractors have a code of conduct as well as providing training on communication with local communities for workers prior to employment. On site facilities (i.e. sanitary facilities and canteen) will ensure compliance with Bank standards. The Project will fully comply with requirements of the Turkish Labor law, which is in compliance with principles of international labor standards, most of which is ensured through compliance with ILO Conventions Turkey is party to. Therefore; child labor, forced labor and discrimination (of race and gender) will not be tolerated.

<u>Cultural assets</u>: At this stage of the project, no impact is envisaged in connection with cultural assets. A chance find procedure will be developed in accordance with the Turkish legislation, and the relevant authorities will be contacted in case of a chance-find to enforce the applicable legislation.

6 Mitigation Measures and Monitoring Plan

The potential environmental and social impacts that may arise during the project construction stage, measures to be taken to manage these impacts and the monitoring plan are presented in Table 3 and Table 4, respectively. The tables contain all details including the type of potential impact, at what stage of the project they may arise, and what measures must be taken to control the impact.

Grievance Redress Mechanism

DSI has a four level grievance system in place in addition to the national GRM system (Prime Ministry and Presidency Communication Centers) that is also used to submit grievances. DSI, through its additional efforts will make arrangements to collect scheme specific grievances to be addressed and resolved during project implementation. Concerns, requests and complaints of project-affected stakeholders on both environmental and social impacts of the project will be dealt with through GRM.

Information on pre-construction works (land consolidation, land acquisition etc.), construction schedule and availability of project GRM will be disclosed to affected communities through

consultations and other engagement activities, DSI official website as well as through regional directorates, relevant provincial branches and through WUAs.

Due to the nature of the sub-projects, project affected communities may have concerns regarding the planning, design and implementation of TIMP. DSI will engage Public Relations Expert(s) for disseminating information regarding the grievance mechanism. Grievances to be communicated under the Project will be addressed at four levels:

- WUA level (settlements);
- Provincial directorate level
- Regional level
- National Level (through Headquarters and national GRM system)

Although there is no obligation, a Public Grievance Form has been prepared for convenience, and is presented in Annex-3. All the complaints and concerns received through the grievance system will be archived and the related issues will be attempted to be solved or mitigated within a predefined timeframe. The statistics of grievances will be regularly reported to the WB.

This ESMF will also be disclosed in both Turkish and English for public information in DSI and its regional directorates as well as WB external website to allow interested stakeholder groups to review and comment on it before the public consultation meetings. Subsequently, the comments of the communities will be reflected into the ESMF and the agreed version will also be disclosed on the abovementioned media. Similar to ESMF, site-specific ESMPs will also be prepared and disclosed for public information in both English and Turkish in a timely manner to allow the interested stakeholders to review and comment before the public consultation meetings. After revision of the site-specific ESMPs in accordance with the comments from the communities, the final versions will also be available for public review.



Table 3. Measures to be taken during construction stage and Monitoring Plan

Impact/Issue	Mitigation Measure	Cost (TL)	Institutional Responsibility	Comments
Pre-Construction:				
Workforce and Camps	• Siting and operation of work camps should be undertaken in consultation with local authorities and communities.	Included in design, no	Contractor	Tender and contract documen
•	• To the extent possible, work camps should not be located in close proximity to local communities.		Supervision	
	• When preparing the campsites, the vegetated soil layer (approximately 30 cm) will be scraped and stored in a suitable area. After the completion of construction work, this vegetated soil layer will be used for restoring the campsite.		responsibility with DSI site staff.	
	• In order to prevent potential conflicts between the local people and project employees, consultation must be maintained with the local people and complaints from people must be taken into consideration.			
	• The workforce to be employed under the project must be trained about the sensitivities of local people and a policy of "work ethics and moral values" must be prepared and attached to the contracts of employees.			
	Recruit unskilled or semi-skilled workers from local communities to the extent possible.			
	• Provide adequate lavatory facilities (e.g. toilets and washing areas) should be provided for the number of people to work in the work site.			
	• The wastewaters to originate from the camp sites must be appropriately discharged to receiving bodies pursuant to the local legislation and the WB Safeguards Policies.			
	• Campsite must have necessary infrastructural arrangements such as electricity, water, sewerage, communication network as well as proper accommodation facilities (dormitory, canteen) for the workers that will accommodate on site.			
	• Campsites must have the areas and equipment (waste bins, containers, etc.) required for recovery, temporary storage and disposal of solid wastes in accordance with the related local legislation.			
	Waste disposal through incineration shall be avoided in the campsites.			
	• When selecting the areas to store fuel, hazardous chemicals, hazardous wastes, etc., sensitive receiving bodies such as surface waters will be taken into account and sufficient distance shall be maintained from these areas (e.g. 50 meters to surface waters).			
	• If fuel filling and vehicle maintenance works will be carried out in the campsites, these areas shall be prepared in compliance with regulations, and their grounds shall be made impermeable to prevent soil pollution (through concrete coating, etc.).			
	• Fuel filling areas will be equipped with oil and chemical absorbing equipment, etc. to percent contamination through accidental spills.			
	• Fuel tanks will be placed in fully-impermeable pools in compliance with the regulation.			
	• The workers staying in the campsite will be provided with domestic water compliant with the related regulations and standards.			
	• The drinking and domestic waters supplied to the camp sites will be regularly analyzed (weekly or monthly).			
Temporary storage areas, excavation material disposal areas, and other areas.	The existing open channel materials to be removed from the site under irrigation modernization and their demolition materials, will be removed from site, stored and disposed of in accordance with the Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes (OG no. 25406 dated 18 March 2004).	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price. Supervision responsibility with DSI		Tender and contract document
	• Since the earth to be excavated from the areas where underground irrigation pipes will be laid will mostly be used for backfill, a large amount of excavation waste is not expected to be generated. In case temporary excavation waste are generated, they will be stored in areas permitted by the related local authority, in compliance with the Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes (OG no. 25406 dated 18 March 2004).		site staff.	
	• The topsoil layer of temporary storage areas and excavation material disposal areas will be stripped and conserved for use in restoring these areas. The soil remaining in areas that cannot be restored (e.g. excavation and demolition materials storage areas) may be sent to areas needing it in coordination with the related Agriculture Directorates.			



Impact/Issue	Mitigation Measure	Cost	Institutional
		(TL)	Responsibili
	Where the project requires a crushing, sifting and/or concrete plant, required permits will be obtained for these units within the framework of the EIA Regulation.		
Fuel filling and vehicle maintenance	 As a general principle of the project, fuel filling or vehicle maintenance processes will not be carried out in the construction site. Fuel filling or vehicle maintenance processes will be carried out at special areas or facilities designated for these purposes outside the site. However, in case heavy work machinery is used (e.g. crawler excavators and loaders) it may not be possible to carry out the fuel filling and maintenance processors for these vehicles outside the site. In such cases, the area where such processes will be carried out shall be equipped with all equipment and instruments required for response to a potential spill. (oil pans, oil and chemical absorbents, etc.). The Contractor shall be obliged to prepare all procedures, and provide and document trainings required to carry out these processes in compliance with environmental, labor, health and safety standards and regulations. Emergency response procedures shall be applied in case of any spillage, and such incidents shall be reported to the site supervisor. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility site staff.
Land consolidation and land take.	 Private properties and agricultural lands will be avoided to the extent possible. Public lands will be utilized where additional land is required. Land consolidation will be made use of in places where applicable. Where expropriation is inevitable, site specific Land Acquisition Plans will be prepared and implemented in accordance with the LAPF. Land consolidation carried out by DSI will be implemented according to OP 4.12 and any cases requiring mitigation measures will refer to Entitlement Matrix in LAPF or to the site specific LAP (in any) Site-specific LAP will be appropriately implemented. 	Included in the planning cost. No additional cost.	DSI
Public Participation and Access to Information	 ESMP and LAP will be disclosed to the public so that people can easily access and comment on it. The information on the Grievance Redress Mechanism will be introduced to the people. Consultation meetings will be organized with local people including vulnerable groups and other relevant stakeholders about project components and project activities. Special arrangements will be made for the inclusion of women farmers/ water users. People will be informed about traffic arrangements, construction activities etc. Announcements, disclosure of documents will be made in public places accessible to women and other possible vulnerable groups. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility site staff.
Construction Stage	<u> </u>		
Waste Management and Hazardous Wastes	 Measures will be taken to ensure minimum waste generation. Wastes will be classified in accordance with the applicable regulations (recyclable, hazardous, inert, non-hazardous, etc.) and it will be ensured that wastes are collected, temporarily stored, transferred and disposed of within the framework of this system. As necessary, a temporary waste storage area will be designed and constructed in a specifically designated area in order to ensure that hazardous wastes are appropriately stored in the construction site. Records will be kept about the waste generation, storage and disposal. It will be ensured that wastes are disposed of in licensed facilities. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility site staff.
Construction and excavation wastes	 Employees will be trained about waste management practices. Irrigation Modernization Project involves the replacement of existing open channels with pressurized closed channel system. In this scope, the wastes from existing system will be disposed of in accordance with Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes OG no. 25406 dated 18 March 2004). 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility

onal sibility	Comments
or sion bility with DSI	Tender and contract documents
or ion bility with DSI	Tender and contract documents
or iion bility with DSI	Tender and contract documents
or ion bility with DSI	Tender and contract documents

site staff.



Impact/Issue	Mitigation Measure	Cost (TL)	Institutional Responsibility	Comments
	 In cases where permanent storage of excavation wastes is necessary, these wastes will be stored in areas that will not harm the local people, flora and fauna species, in line with the opinion of the related authority in line with the Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes OG no. 25406 dated 18 March 2004). Erosion control measures will be taken for areas where excavation materials and construction wastes are stored. Necessary measures will be taken to prevent silt flow and similar impacts on from the storage areas to surface waters. 			
Excavation works	 Excavation works will be carried out only within the related area, and any damage on neighboring areas by excavation works will be avoided. Excavated earth and topsoil will be stored separately and their mixture with each other will be prevented. Excavated earth may need to be temporarily stored along the canal route for use in refill process later on. In this case, the contractor shall ensure that sufficient area is left along the construction route and make an arrangement for storage of excavated earth and topsoil. The area will be restored later, and the topsoil will be used for this purpose. Excess excavation material (including rocks and stones extracted during the excavation) will not be left on site after completion of construction works. All excavation works will be carried out in a controlled manner during rainy seasons. The channels involving underground pipes will be closed soon after the completion of works and approval of the related supervision engineer, and they will not be left open to environmental impacts for a long time. The channels excavated for placement of pipes will be protected from surface water that may come from the vicinity. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documents
Noise	 Construction activities will be carried out between 07:00 and 19:00 hours to the extent possible. The necessary permissions will be obtained and the local authorities and people will be informed beforehand if any work is necessary beyond these hours. Residents in close settlements will be informed throughout the construction process. Threshold values will be observed for continuous construction site noise (daytime - 70 dBA) (Regulation on the Evaluation and Management of Ambient Noise). In order to ensure this, work machinery will be periodically maintained and lubricated, and parts that may cause excessive noise will be replaced. Fixed construction machinery will be placed away from sensitive recipients such as schools, hospitals and residences. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documents Weekly and monthly reports within framework of monitoring schedule
Air Quality	 The emission threshold for dust and particulate matters, which is 3 mg/Nm³ (Regulation on the Control of Air Pollution from Industrial Sources), will not be exceeded. For this purpose; Watering will be done during dry seasons. Filling and emptying processes will be done without scattering. Water sprinkling will be applied in order to prevent dust formation during the process. Furthermore, workers will be warned to be careful during the filling and emptying processes. The direction and speed of wind will be taken into account when loading and unloading materials. The top of trucks will be covered and a speed limit will be applied in order not to disturb the security of the local people and to prevent scattering. All the vehicles to be used must have exhaust emission permits 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documents Weekly and monthly reports withir framework of monitoring schedule
Surface waters	 All surface water resources within the project area will be protected from project-sourced wastes and activities and pollutants such as excavation materials to be temporarily or permanently stored. Surface water resources will not be used for washing and cleaning of vehicles to be used for construction works. In case the channels excavated for pressurized pipes are filled with surface water, ground water or rainwater, the potential muddy water to be discharged from these channels will not be discharged directly to receiving bodies. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documents Weekly and monthly reports within framework of monitoring schedule



Impact/Issue	Mitigation Measure	Cost (TL)	Institutional Responsibility	Comments
	• The wastewaters to be generated from the toilets and bathrooms in the construction site will be discharged after being treated in accordance with the applicable regulations.			
Traffic	 Warning plates will be placed along the excavation route to ensure safety of people, and entrance to the construction site will be blocked using plastic stripes, barriers and luminous warning lights. Necessary measures will be taken through the related authorities in order to ensure a safe flow of traffic. Local people will be informed about the construction program. In case of any interruption or cessation of work during the construction stage, the trenches must not be left open and necessary measures must be taken. In order to prevent any interruption in the flow of traffic on roads used by local people, during the construction activities, an alternative road route will be determined. The roads to be used will avoid passing nearby sensitive recipients such as schools and residences, to the extent possible. The project area and environs will be equipped with safety and traffic warning signs. Speed limit rules will be complied with. The vehicle drivers and work machine operators to be employed during the construction will be informed about safe drive. Existing roads will not be damaged during the transportation activities. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documer
	 In case existing roads are damaged during the traffic of heavy vehicles, the cost of damage will be compensated and covered by the contractor. 			
Labor health and safety	 The employees will be provided with all types of protective equipment (helmet, safety belt, labor health costume, eyeglasses, gloves, safety boot, etc.). The employees will be trained about labor health and safety. All the employees will be informed about the safety rules, risks and applicable regulations required to be complied with during the construction activities. If channels deeper than 1.5 m. have to be excavated when laying the pressurized pipes, indoor area working procedures shall be applied. The Contractor will take required measures pursuant to the applicable regulations to protect and enhance labor health and regulate working standards in particular. The Contractor will comply with the principles of fair treatment and non-discrimination and create equal standards for all employees. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documer
Cultural Heritage	 Chance-find procedure will be created. In case of a chance-find, all activities that may damage the archaeological find will be stopped and the related Museum Directorate will be contacted immediately. If deemed necessary by museum officials, assistance will be provided to the formation of a research team under the Museum Archaeologist and mitigation measures required by the research team will be implemented. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract documer
Land consolidation and land take.	 Any loss of assets, or livelihood will be compensated through site specific LAPs Consultations with all stakeholders including vulnerable groups will be realized in line with SEP to inform about the land consolidation/acquisition process 	Included in the planning cost. No additional cost.	DSI Contractor	



Impact/Issue	Mitigation Measure	Cost (TL)	Institutional Responsibility	Comments
Infrastructure	 Damages to existing infrastructure and superstructure (telecommunication lines, bridges, high-voltage lines, etc.) will be avoided to the extent possible. Any damages will be compensated in line with LAPs. 	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract document
Labor	Civil work contracts will oblige the contractor to follow the national legal framework and ban the worst forms of child labor.	No additional cost.	Contractor Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.	Tender and contract document
Post-Construction		· · ·		
Temporary storage areas and camp sites	Temporary storage areas and campsites will be restored before operation, and no excess excavation materials, construction materials and debris must be left in the site.	No additional cost. Cost Contractor Tender included in contract price. Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.		Tender and contract document
Borrow pits	Make sure all necessary permits have been obtained for the borrow pits to be used for construction activities	No additional cost. Cost included in contract price. Supervision responsibility with DSI site staff.		Tender and contract document

Table 4. Monitoring Plan for Construction Stage

Subject	What are the parameters to be monitored?	Where will the parameters be monitored?	How will the parameters be monitored / what are the monitoring instruments?	When will the parameters be monitored? Measurement frequency / continuous measurement?	Why will the parameters be monitored?	Cost	Responsible institution*	Start date	End date
				Construction Stag	je				
Dust-particulate matter (dust to originate from the movement and exhaust gas of construction machinery)	Dust to originate from the movement and exhaust gas of earth-moving and construction machinery (mg/Nm ³) Complaints from public	Construction Area, campsite, settlements closest to the permanent and temporary storage areas	Visual observations Interviews in nearby settlements Instantaneous measurements	Weekly / instantaneous measurements during excavation / intensive construction times Upon complaint / in accordance with the Regulation	Regulation on the Control of Air Pollution from Industrial Sources, Regulation on the Evaluation and Management of Air Quality WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Noise	Complaints from public Noise level (dBA)	Construction Area, campsite, settlements closest to the permanent and temporary storage areas	Interviews in nearby settlements Level of noise to be measured by Noise meter (noise level meter)	Weekly / instantaneous measurements during excavation / intensive construction times Upon complaint / in accordance with the Regulation	Regulation on the Evaluation and Management of Ambient Noise WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Wastewaters originating from campsites	Connection to sewerage system		Connection Permit	N/A	Water Pollution Control Regulation	No additional cost	Contractor /	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work



					. .			
What are the parameters to be monitored?	Where will the parameters be monitored?		•	Why will the parameters be monitored?	Cost	Responsible institution*	Start date	End date
In case use of a WWTP, COD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform at the outlet In case use of septic tank, collection schedule and the WWTP utilized for final disposal	Sewerage connection Septic areas	Transfer and discharge documents	As mentioned in the discharge permit	WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	(within project budget)	DSI		
COD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform, depending on the discharge to the receiving bodies, if wastewater treatment plant is established Turbidity due to the discharge of water accumulated in trenches due to rainfall and ground waters, to the receiving body	Receiving body, before and after discharge Receiving body, before and after discharge	Discharge permit, 24-hour composite sampling, laboratory analysis Visually, or using measurement device upon site upon complaint	At times mentioned in the discharge permit Instantaneous Upon complaint	Water Pollution Control Regulation WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Permit certificate for excavation waste storage areas and temporary storage areas Excavation material and waste storage areas Certificates of transportation to acceptance to disposal facilities	Construction Area, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	Visually	Weekly and monthly	Waste Management Regulation, Regulation on Control of Soil Pollution and Areas Contaminated by Point Sources, Regulation on the Control of Excavation Material, Construction and Demolition Wastes and Regulation on Control of Waste Oils WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	Not high, although subject to the availability of a municipal and / or licensed recovery plant. Not high, although subject to the availability of a licensed recovery plant.	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Wastes oils, batteries, used tires and scrap vehicle materials	Vehicle park	Review and control of vehicle examination certificates	In case of breakdown / during periodic maintenance	Regulations on Control of Waste Oils, Control of Waste Batteries and Accumulators, and Control of Used Tires WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	Not high, although subject to the availability of a licensed recovery plant	Contractor	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Documentation about the health and safety training Certificates of participation in training Safety equipment used by the workers in the construction site (helmet,	Construction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	Visually	At the beginning of each work stage Daily	Labor Health and Safety Regulation WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
	In case use of a WWTP, COD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform at the outletIn case use of septic tank, collection schedule and the WWTP utilized for final disposalCOD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform, depending on the discharge to the receiving bodies, if wastewater treatment plant is establishedTurbidity due to the discharge of water accumulated in trenches due to rainfall and ground waters, to the receiving bodyPermit certificate for excavation waste storage areas and temporary storage areasExcavation material and waste storage areasCertificates of transportation to acceptance to disposal facilitiesWastes oils, batteries, used tires and scrap vehicle materialsDocumentation about the health and safety trainingCertificates of participation in trainingSafety equipment used by the workers in the	be monitored?monitored?In case use of a WWTP, COD, BOD, PH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform at the outletSewerage connectionIn case use of septic tank, collection schedule and the WWTP utilized for final disposalSeptic areasCOD, BOD, PH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform, depending on the discharge to the receiving bodies, if wastewater treatment plant is establishedReceiving body, before and after dischargeTurbidity due to the discharge of water accumulated in trenches due to rainfall and ground waters, to the receiving bodyConstruction Area, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasExcavation material and waste storage areasConstruction Area, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasExcavation material and waste storage areasVehicle parkWastes oils, batteries, used tires and scrap vehicle materialsVehicle parkDocumentation about the health and safety training Certificates of participation in trainingConstruction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasDocumentation about the health and safety trainingConstruction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	be monitored?monitored?monitored?monitored?In case use of a WWTP; COD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform at the outletSewerage connectionTransfer and discharge documentsIn case use of septic tank, collection schoule and the WWTP utilized for final disposalSeptic areasDischarge permit, 24-hour composite sampling, laboratory analysisCOD, BOD, pH, SSM, E-coli, Total Coliform, depending on the discharge to the receiving bodiy, before and after dischargeDischarge permit, 24-hour composite sampling, laboratory analysisTurbidity due to the discharge of water accumutated in trenches due to rainfall and ground waters, to the receiving body, before and after dischargeDischarge permit, 24-hour composite sampling, laboratory analysisPermit certificate for excavation waste storage areas and temporary storage areasConstruction Area, Campsite, permanent and after dischargeExcavation material and waste storage areasConstruction Area, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasVisuallyWastes oils, batteries, used transportation to acceptance to disposal facilitiesVehicle parkReview and control of vehicle examination certificatesDocumentation about the health and safety training Safety equipment used by the workers in theConstruction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasVisuallySafety equipment used by the workers in theConstruction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areasVisually	be monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? moni	be nonloced? monloced? monloced / was are the monitoring instruments? monloced / was are the monitoring instruments? monloced / was are the monitoring instruments? monloced / was are the monitoring instruments? monloced / was are the monitoring instruments? In case use of a WWIP, Call Collorn all the oaled in case use of a WWIP, Call Collorn all the oaled instruments. Semerage connection Semerage connection Semerage connection Semerage connection Well's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual In case use of a WWIP, Call Collorn, schedule and the WWIP rolited for final disposit. Reserving body, before and star discharge to the receiving body, before and star discharge Discharge parmit, 2/4 hour composite receiving body, before and star discharge Attimes mentioned in the device upon size upon compliant Instantaneoux. Upon compliant Weekly and monthly Water Folkation Control Megics General Environment, Health and Safety Manual Permit cerving, body Construction Area, compliant on the waster storage areas Cardition areas Cardition areas Cardition areas Cardition areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to discharge areas and temporary storage areas Cardition to disposition on Coro of of Stacavation Meetalio, Contro	be nonitorsel?monitorsel?monitorsel?monitorsel?monitorsel?monitorsel?monitorsel?In case use of a VMVTP, CDD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, C-oki, TCD, EDD, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, MLSM, EDD, TCD, TCH, ML	be monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? monitored? moni	Demonstreef?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned?mentaned? </td


Subject	What are the parameters to be monitored?	Where will the parameters be monitored?	How will the parameters be monitored / what are the monitoring instruments?	When will the parameters be monitored? Measurement frequency / continuous measurement?	Why will the parameters be monitored?	Cost	Responsible institution*	Start date	End date
	etc.)								
Public and Traffic Safety	Plastic stripes, barriers, warning plates Traffic flow / intensity Information of individuals and business owners living along the road route about the construction program	Construction Site, Campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	Visually	Throughout construction stage	WBG's General Environment, Health and Safety Manual	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Cultural and historical assets	New cultural assets that may be found in the project area	Construction site, campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	Visually	When a cultural asset is encountered, it will be monitored by Cultural and Natural Wealth Conservation officials	Compliance with Cultural and Natural Wealth Conservation Law	Not high unless a cultural asset is damaged	Museum Directorate / Regional Protection Board DSI	Beginning of construction work	Completion of construction work
Land consolidation and land take	Information on individuals subject to land consolidation or land acquisition	Construction site Lands used permanently or temporarily within construction site	Site specific LAPs Site visits Interviews with project affected people Regular reports from site on LC and land acquisition	Land acquisition and land consolidation will be monitored on a daily basis by local DSI officials throughout their process Quarterly reporting will be realized for WB	Compliance with Bank's OP 4.12	Costs will be included in project budget	DSI	Prior to construction	Before construction begins
				Post-Construction	n	•	•	-	
Restoration and rehabilitation of degraded areas	Restoration, construction wastes left on site, excavation materials, solid wastes and other unused materials and wastes	Construction site, campsite, permanent and temporary storage areas	Visually	After completion of construction works	Waste Management Regulation, Regulation on Control of Soil Pollution and Areas Contaminated by Point Sources	No additional cost (within project budget)	Contractor / DSI	Completion of construction work	Provisional acceptance



7 Roles and Responsibilities

The roles to be performed under ESMP and the parties responsible for these activities are shown in Table 5.

Responsible Party World Bank	 Responsibilities to review, approve and disclose ESMPs on WB's official website. to review the scheme specific ESMPs and LAPs and provide no objections to DSI. to provide assistance in the preparation of gender sensitization trainings to be given to DSI local staff and WUA representatives. to conduct implementation support missions in order to ensure that the Project is in compliance with WB Safeguards Policies.
DSI	 to implement the ESMF to prepare ESMPs to submit ESMPs the WB for prior review. (after the prior review of a defined number of ESMPs, the procedure may shift to post review subject to the mutual agreement of the WB and DSI). to perform the quality control and review of ESMPs. to disclose ESMPs on the official website of DSI and incorporate ESMPs into bidding documents. to appoint specialist for the environmental and social monitoring. to perform inspections of the implementation of ESMP by the construction contractor, make recommendations and decide whether additional measures are needed or not. in case of non-compliance, ensure that the contractor eliminates the noncompliance and inform the WB about the noncompliance. to prepare, update and implement a Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP) that considers vulnerable groups in addition to paying attention to the gender aspect of the Project, to hold consultation meetings, and prepare and distribute leaflets or other informative documents to inform communities, recruit a community liaison officer on project, and its impacts and construction schedule as well as rights and entitlements of PAPs to create a local level grievance mechanism to provide guidance to the construction contractor and engineering supervision firm. to summarize the environmental and social issues related to project implementation to WB in regular progress reports. to be open to comments from affected groups and local environmental authorities regarding environmental aspects of project implementation. Meet with these groups during site visits, as necessary.



Responsible Party	Responsibilities
	 to coordinate and liaise with WB supervision missions regarding environmental and social safeguard aspects of project implementation. to conduct regular monitoring activities for the implementation of site specific ESMPs and LAPs also including updates on land consolidation activities previously conducted by MoFAL to prepare/design sensitization training and tools for DSI's local (regional and/or branch level) staff and WUA representatives
Contractor	 to implement ESMPs on site, if required can revise the ESMP together with DSI. to manage the grievance mechanism at the contractor, communicate grievances to DSI regularly through ESMP monitoring reports. to monitor site activities on a regular basis (daily, weekly monthly etc.) to prepare the ESMP progress reports for the review of DSI. to compensate or fix damages occurred during construction (i.e. damages to crops, infrastructure) as set out by the ESMP or LAP/LAPF.
Environmental and Social Specialist (to be appointed by DSI)	 to ensure that ESMP is implemented correctly and in a timely manner by the contractor. to perform environmental and social monitoring as defined in ESMF and sub-project specific ESMPs. to collect information on environmental and social issues for progress reports submitted to the WB and make sure that these are all compliant with the Bank's requirements.
Communication Specialist (to be appointed by DSI)	 to prepare, implement and monitor the Communication Strategy of the Project. to prepare all communication and visibility tools (i.e. brochures, leaflets, banners, posters, meeting announcements etc.) that will be used to inform host communities. oversee the process for printing and dissemination of the communication/visibility tools as well as planning and organization of public events and consultation meetings with Project beneficiaries. to prepare periodic reports on all communication and visibility activities realized under the Project to the DSI to be submitted to the Bank as a part of the monitoring process.



8 Public Consultation Meetings

A public consultation meeting was held in Ereğli - Konya on July 17, 2018 in order to introduce ESMF, LARPF and Ereğli - İvriz ESMP and receive the comments of people (Photos 3, 4 and 5). The meeting was held with the participation of DSI representatives, Governorate representatives, farmers, workers and local people where at a total of 305 participants with 96 women were present. The minutes of the meeting and the participant list is given in Annex 4 and 5. The attendees from the Governorate included Ereğli District Governor and the Mayor, District Agricultural Director and Deputy Regional Manager whereas DSI's side included Head of Survey and Evaluation Branch, Irrigation and Drainage Branch Manager, Agricultural Engineer, Project Design and Construction Branch Manager, Operation and Maintenance Branch Acting Manager, Real Estate and Expropriation Branch Acting Manager and Ereğli Branch Manager, while İvriz WUA President and Ivriz Left Bank and Yıldızlı WUA Manager have attended from WUAs side. After opening speeches of DSİ representatives, agricultural works and the Mayor, DSİ presented information on the project in general as well as its advantages for the farmers, technical details of the project, financial sources and land acquisition and consolidation studies. The attendees asked technical details on the land consolidation practices.



Photo - 3. İvriz Meeting (1)





Photo - 4. İvriz meeting (2)



Photo - 5. DSİ Presentation

9 Reporting

The reporting processes required to be carried out during the project implementation stage and the requirements for these processes are presented in Table 6.

Responsible Party	Requirement of Reporting Process
	 Preparation and submission of the quarterly Project Information Notes (PIN) in a regular manner to the Bank in line with the Bank's time schedule
DSİ	 Preparation and submission of the Project Progress Reports (PPR) semiannually to the WB
	 Summarizing the environmental and social issues related to project implementation to WB in regular progress reports.
	 Preparation of Monitoring Reports to the WB every six months before WB task team site visits.
DSİ / DSİ Regional Directorates	 Preparation of semi-annual monitoring reports for prior review of the World Bank.
Contractor / Construction Supervision Consultants	 Preparation of ESMP progress reports and their submission to the DSİ for approval

Table 6. Requirements of Reporting Process and Distribution of Roles



ANNEXES

Annex- 1: Map Showing Konya Ereğli-İvriz Irrigation Area and Units



Annex- 2: Project Timetable

1st Year: Tendering by DSİ and Start of works2nd Year: Approximately 5000 ha of area completion and operation in the 1st phase3rd Year: Approximately 5000 ha of area completion and operation in the 2nd phase4th Year: Approximately 5280 ha of area completion and operation in the 3rd phase5th Year: Operation of the facility by the contractor6th Year: Operation of the facility by the contractor



	GRIEVA	NCE FORM	
Name of Pers	on receiving		Date:
grievance:			
grievance.			
Title:			
INFORMATIC	N ABOUT COMPLAINANT	Ways of Receivi	ng Grievance
Name –		Phone	
Surname		- Thome	
Phone number		Meetings	
number			
Address		Application to Office	
Village		Mail/email	
c:		Field visit	
Signature of Complainant		Other:	
(if possible)			
DETAILS OF C	RIEVANCE		

Annex- 3: Grievance Form/ Grievance Closeout Form



	GRIEVA	ANCE CLOSEOUT FO	RM	
		Expropriation		
		Damages to households or livelihoods		
ASSESSMENT OF THE GRI	EVANCE	Environmental	and social	
		Employment		
		Other		
Compensation Required:		□ YES		
RESULT				
CLOSEOUT				
	losed-out. (Inste	ad of taking the sign	complaint evaluation commit nature of the complainant, ba	
Responsible Pe	rson		Complainant	
Name-Surnar	ne		Name-Surname	
Date and Signa	ture		Date and Signature (If possib	ile)



Annex- 4: Minutes of İvriz Public Consultation Meeting

17 July 2018

11:10

KONYA EREĞLİ İVRİZ LEFT BANK REHABILITATION PROJECT

PUBLIC CONSULTATION MEETING

MINUTES OF MEETING

The meeting started at 11:00 hours on 17 July 2018, at the meeting hall of Ereğli Municipality in the district center of Ereğli, Konya. The meeting was attended by representatives from DSI Directorate General and DSI 4th Regional Directorate, District Governor and mayor of Ereğli, and many other officials and farmers from the district.

The opening speech of the meeting was delivered by Mehmet Muhittin ÖZYALVAÇ, Deputy Regional Director. It is not possible to control the water since the existing irrigation system within İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme is a classical system with a network of canalettes, and is old and worn-out. Today, this public consultation meeting has been organized to discuss the environmental and social impacts of converting the İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme into a pressurized closed system through the rehabilitation project under the World Bank's Irrigation Modernization Project.

Orhan SOYLU, District Agriculture Director, started his speech with welcome remarks and went on to say the following: "Of the 120,000 ha agricultural land in Ereğli, 65,000 ha is used for irrigated agriculture (40,000 ha through İvriz dam and the rest through cooperatives). It has become necessary to implement this project since the crop pattern in our region demonstrates a broad variety and is critical for livestock as well. For this reason, the modern closed system needs to be expanded in our district."

Özkan ÖZGÜVEN, Mayor of Ereğli, started his speech by tanking the workers, especially the female workers, and went on to say the following: "As a person who has spent 10 years of his career at the Agricultural Directorate, a person born and grown up in Ereğli and involved in farming activities, I would like to speak on behalf of farmers. Ereğli is a district growing rapidly in agricultural and livestock production and agricultural industry. Agriculture is the most important source of income in our district. For this reason, the people living here spent all their time, night and day, for agriculture. Farmers can supply their gasoil, fertilizer and similar needs for agricultural production, but cannot get irrigation water. It is not possible to meet this need through flooding irrigation with water from ivriz Dam. The most critical problem in agricultural sector is water. The construction works for converting the right bank into closed system started at the first phase. Field work is underway. However the population in the left bank irrigation area is three times greater than the population in the right bank



irrigation area. The farmers in the left bank irrigation area currently expect that the project be implemented in their area. We are happy with the organization of this meeting and the level of participation.

Deniz ŞAHİN, Deputy Head of Operation and Maintenance Branch at DSI 4th Regional Directorate, and Sedat ULULAR, Project Construction Branch Manager at DSI 4th Regional Directorate, provided general technical information about the existing Ereğli İvriz Left Bank irrigation scheme and made a presentation on the left main channel, Adabağ and Yıldızlı irrigation schemes within the left bank system. They informed that the operation and maintenance of these facilities were transferred to İvriz Left Bank and Yıldızlı water user association in 1995.

Hüseyin ERCAN, Survey and Evaluation Branch Manager at the Real Estate and Expropriation Department of DSI Directorate General provided information on Land Acquisition and Environmental and Social Impacts of the project, as well as the way how they will be managed, as summarized below:

Dear Governor, Dear Mayor, and distinguished participants.. I would like to greet you with my warmest regards on behalf of my institution.

Today, we have convened here for the public consultation meeting of Konya Ereğli İvriz Left Bank Irrigation Scheme Rehabilitation Project. In this scope, I will provide you with information on land consolidation and expropriation process in the context of Land Acquisition as well as environmental and social impacts of the project and their management.

As you know, State Hydraulic Works performs functions in 4 sectors: irrigation, energy, drinking water and flood protection. The immovable properties needed for these functions are obtained usually through expropriation. In recent years, DSİ has been preferring land consolidation for irrigation facilities if the area is suitable. Land consolidation will be preferred in the first place for the rehabilitation project and expropriation method will be used where inevitable. For İvriz project, we will primarily apply land consolidation. The expropriation method will be used where consolidation will not be possible. The damages to occur on the land during the construction stage will be compensated by DSI. We will be in touch with you throughout this process through informative meetings. State Hydraulic Works will always be with you.

State Hydraulic Works carries out expropriation activities in accordance with Expropriation Law No. 2942 based on Article 46 of the Constitution. The law was amended in 2001 and continues to be updated from time to time. The general practice is to seek reconciliation first for expropriation.

Expropriation process begins with a decision of public good and ends with registration. After a decision of public good is taken, expropriation plans are prepared and land registry records are obtained. Then an address inquiry is conducted, the value of immovable properties is appraised and the right owners are called on to reconcile. If agreement can be reached with the right holders, then the expropriation fees are paid to their accounts. If an agreement cannot be reached, we apply to the court. The administration covers the court expenses. The values appraised as a result of lawsuit are paid to owners and registration takes place thereafter.



For land consolidation, land surveys need to be conducted first. If the area is suitable for consolidation, then a Council of Ministers decision need to be taken. Council of Ministers decision has the effect of a decision for public good. All property related actions we take are based on a decision for public good, and a rating is done according to the parcel characteristics and soil surveys. At every transaction step, information is provided through public disclosure, and any objection or request is received. State Hydraulic Works officials talk to farmers to solicit their requests. Information such as where they want their land from and which neighbors they prefer is collected in writing and then evaluated. The subdivision plans prepared as a result of these studies are finalized and publicly posted. We continue with each step by sharing information with the public. The plans to be disclosed are posted at the Municipality buildings, Village headman's offices, Water User Associations so that they can be seen by citizens. After this process is completed, registration and land handover procedures are concluded.

In this project and others included in the same scope (5 projects), the basic principles adopted by the World Bank must be complied with in addition to the local regulations. With regard to land acquisition, a land acquisition framework document will be prepared and published. Based on this framework document, a land acquisition plan will be prepared for each individual project and actions will be taken in accordance with that plan. During the project, our administration will collect complaints, and requests through a mechanism to be created in cooperation with the supervision organization, water user association, branches, Regional Directorate and Directorate General, and the process will be managed collectively.

During the implementation stage of the rehabilitation project, utmost attention will be paid to avoid any environmental pollution. As is the case for all other projects implemented by our Directorate General, the project's environmental impacts will be identified and measures will be taken for potential impacts. Necessary measures will be taken to prevent noise, air pollution, and similar impacts during the implementation stage. The measures required to be taken for workers to be employed by contractors at the construction stage are stipulated in laws and contractors will take these measures without any delay. IN order to prevent any negative social impact of the project, work programs will be prepared in compliance with production timing and will be applied after sharing them with stakeholders.

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

The public consultation meeting received an intensive participation. In addition to such an intensive participation, the level of female participants was also pleasing.

The female farmers from Akhüyük and Kargacı settlements have asked questions about whether their settlements were covered by the consolidation area and whether all immovable properties would be collected at a single center as part of the land consolidation process. The officials from the administration answered these question as follows:

In order to decide whether settlement units would be included in the scope of land consolidation, land surveys are conducted first and all pieces of land which remain outside settlement development plans or where fixed facilities are not extensively present, are included in the scope of consolidation to the extent technically feasible. The immovables of citizens in the same settlement are subjected to consolidation taking into consideration the requests of citizens, to the extent it is technically feasible. However, transfers between settlement units is not possible in case immovable properties are located in different settlement units.

During the meeting, it was observed that citizens view the project as a great necessity and the complaints and requests mainly concentrate on water constraints due to water losses in irrigation. This demonstrates that there is high public engagement and support for the project.

PARTICIPANTS

Governor of Ereğli	: Ömer Lütfi YARAN
Mayor of Ereğli	: Özkan ÖZGÜVEN
Ereğli District Agriculture Director	: Orhan SOYLU
Deputy Regional Director	: Mehmet Muhittin ÖZYALVAÇ

DSİ Directorate General

Real Estate and Expropriation Department

Head of Survey and Evaluation Branch : Hüseyin ERCAN Project Construction Department

Irrigation and Drainage Branch Manager : Mesut KELEŞ Operation and Maintenance Department

Agricultural Engineer : Ahmet ARSLAN

Project Design and Construction Branch Manager : Sedat ULULAR

Project Design Branch Manager : Erol ZAMANOĞLU

Operation and Maintenance Branch, Acting Manager : Deniz ŞAHİN Real estate and

Expropriation Branch, Acting Manager : Ekrem ÜNLÜ

Ereğli Branch Manager : Kürşat CİVELEKOĞLU

President of İvriz WUA : Recep YALÇIN

İvriz Left Bank and Yıldızlı WUA Manager : Mitat TAŞTAN



C

Annex- 5: İvriz Public Consultation Meeting Participant List

Si		d 4. Bölge Müdürlü		NT 200 10 1	
				Yayım Tarihi Rev.No-Tarihi	20/05/2009
	To	plantı Katılım For	mu	Sayfa No	00
U EDEN BİRİM/ İ VE SAATİ	ÜNİTE	: 17.07.2	nil Aspoli 1013 - (1.02	2	ojesi Ponti
Adı Soya	da	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
Ahnot	tislen	DSI Gen.M	L Zir Msh	A	ahneta Od
Mesot KEL	₽Ş	ti a	Sb. MJ	MA	mestkelesedsi
Jhren Un	lu	DF 4.B=pertod	Hor. With -	EM	unlue gobipe
0			Sb. md	Luning	husenneras
				glue	tolulars Dasi
4				10	abgoksoy cosig
0	CAOLOJ			Sale	emietara 1
01		hat a fil		11	Sto yurker C
	uc		and and	1 an	ibrahin amon
		juriz solschil	Recha	2 Julies	frot
1		Dei alle mit	Makine Nil	an	birsenaedsiger.
	AKCA	DSi U3. Shind	Geure mat	- G	Karaa kana Qad
USESSI YET	15	bardy3. Sube	ibre Hersel	13	aysegulyeder
akine KARA	Burne	DSr. 43. Sube	time t mith	Stall	essenslare de
Hemoliye G	anvoie			Aut	0
Abdull	oh Gel	ě		Som	- 2.1.0183L
D-Litt YA	IAN	Kaynilalle	Kyndant	AUT	a.
		C.	1	Aw	
Lecalter				tuy	li l'
amaali O	FINC	Sençu & spo	mour	X	sreg hig one life
	Ahand F Messet KEL Joren Un Aliseyon & Sedst UL Getel Zomi A. Bigrehm Emre D Dela Yul Visen Alic Histon Alic Histon Alic Histon Alic Histon Alic Alise HARA Alise HARA Alise HARA Alise HARA Alise HARA	Adi Soyadi Adi Soyadi Meint KELES Jhren Unli Hiseym EREON Sedet ULULA Erel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomonia Crel Zomon	Adi Soyadi Birimi / Unitesi Adi Soyadi Birimi / Unitesi Ahmad Alalan Di Gaanka Meiser KELES II II Jhrom Unlu Di Gr. Md Jarom Unlu Di Gr. Md Jarom Unlu Di Gr. Md Sedat UNILL Di 4. Respected Adiseym ERCON DI Gr. Md Sedat UNILL Di 4. Respected Greb Zomonia Di 4. Respected Greb Zomonia Di 4. Respected Solder UNILL Di 4. Respected Solden Goker Di G. Lee Doi 4. Sugrahan Goker Di 43. Sube Holum Hold ORNA Joine Solden Jarop JALG IN Solman Sube Aligden AKCA Di 43. Sube Aligden AKCA Di 43. Sube Aligden AKCA Di 43. Sube Aligden AKCA Di 43. Sube Aligden AKCA Di 43. Sube Abadul 64 Selk Diff JALAN Keymladdi Dibeyr Duown AL Bat Ilice Locdef ERCANI Nge GomMi	Bolker Dgoin Sa Adi Soyadi Birimi / Unitesi Görevi Ahnad Alalan Dal Gan. Mc Bir Mah Meart KELES II II Sh. Md Jaren Unla Di G. Md Bir Mah Jaren Unla Di G. Md Br. Mich. Jaren Unla Di G. Md Sh. Md Jaren Unla Di G. Md Sh. Md Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Belpeldd Sh. Md. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Sube Mo. Ingart Mah. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Sube Mo. Ingart Mah. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Sube Mo. Ingart Mah. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Sube Mo. Ingart Mah. Sedat UNIA Di 4. Sube Mo. Ingart Mah. Singrehag Göken Di 43. Sube Kinga Tekalae biolan Hold ORMA Mahadun M. Singe JALGIN Samadula B. Beston Visit Sube Mid Makine Mid Higden AKCA Di U3. Shimt Genre met Veregot HETI'S Dor 43. Sube ibri Norse alane Karaburda Disc 43. Sube ibri Norse alane Karaburda Disc 43. Sube Boat Mich Hemodye Gourse	Bolker Dgön Salon Adı Soyadı Birimi / Ünitesi Görevi İmza Ahned Alolen DSI Geon Me Zir Mich A Meint KELES II II Sh. Mid MM Jhren Ünlü DSG. Befechted Hon Mich. Hill Jhren Ünlü DSG. Befechted Hon Mich. Hill Albiergen EROON DITGO. Mod Sh. Mid Juling Sedert UWISC DSI 4. Belpechted Zi. U.d. Attor Erel Zonvonige DSI 4. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Mid Ingust Mich. Milly Emre Bolocker DSI 43. Sube Kimp Tekniker Gutter bishun Hobi ORNA Variality, March Milly Irsen Alcingtur Dis Suber Schul Habine Nilly Irsen Alcingtur DSI 43. Sube Into Normal Makine Milly Hospital DSI 43. Sube Kimp Tekniker Gutter Alcingtur DSI 43. Sube Kimp Tekniker Schul Hospital BSI 44. Suber Schul Kart Alcingtur DSI 43. Suber Geore mong Alcingtur DSI 43. Suber Into Nilly Dira Alcingtur DSI 43. Suber Into Nilly Dira Alcingtur DSI 43. Suber Into Nilly Dira Alcingtur DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Hospital BSI 44. Suber Into Schul Boloch BARABUDAL DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 43. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 44. Schul Karaburat Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 44. Schul Karaburat Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 44. Schul Karaburat Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 45. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 45. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 45. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 45. Suber Into Schul Balane Karaburat DSI 45. Suber Into Schu



1	0	D	Sİ 4. Bölge Müdürli	aga	Doküman No Yayım Tarihi	F 0.45.62.03 20/05/2009
UH	211			1.1.1	Rev.No-Tarihi	00-
6			oplasts Kathes For	-	Sayla No	2
ERI	USU 1P EDEN BÎRÎM/ HÎ VE SAATÎ	ONTRE	49.09.	2018 - 1 - Dagen	1.00	Ingeni anter
Sara Not	Adı Soya	h	Birissi / Ünitesi	Girevi	Imra	e-Posta Adresi
	Sait EKG	P	Iskur Ml	Mide	1900	ekersait that
_	Tradet 6	EHS	ile mili i	A Meter	AD	enc.42@h
-	Talla Di		sigh Porcer		1	Hallovar 90
-	A	HLU	10 Acerkly	ilert Ko	m Nm	
	Only that	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	Relecting.	Baston	76	ostor SS & hotos
	a. 1 a.	you	E. Sobe	ist. Tel	an	al them left
					1	
_			_			
-		-			-	
_					-	
-		_			-	
				-	-	



		T			Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	(De.)	D	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü Toplantı Katılım Formu			20/05/2009
	(~ Si)					00
		1				3
	YIL/NO KONUSU TALEP EDEN B TARİHİ VE SAA YERİ		:19.09.	onti) 25 2018 - 11 Degin	,00	ten Prajesi Ant
	Sira No: Ad	ı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Reall	AP Brake			12	
	Cabab	of Reil I	e		The	1
0	21	a Round			1A	
-	Tak	1 Radi			Al	-
	7.6	Surca			790	>
	Ed		Leber		ED	<u> </u>
	Weding	Kila	2.501		Htato	
	Fech	n Kachen				_
	Take	Kaunat			Tick	
	the contraction of the second	- Kaynak	-		Ottes	
	Elmas	Front			Fat	2
2	Dandi	CAnleba			Dul	
	Isnd	Keel			is	
	Mayas	e Eshi			de/	
	Fadime	Esgi			Sallar	-
	Ativ	le Gras	n		ALI	
	Buera	Keceli			83	
	Hatice	Selant			the	
A	NESRIM	SELÇUK			HA Tash	
1	Kezi	bon Bat.	ir		hat	
N	Ayse	ALTAN		0	Ase.	



bei a bei Mene inve	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
DSI 4. Bolge Mudurlugu	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
Toplanti Katilim Formu	Sayfa No	4
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü Toplantı Katılım Formu	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü Yayım Tarihi Toplantı Katılım Formu Rev.No-Tarihi

: 2018/..... S-1. Soluit Kopalı Sisten Projeri Peretin : 17.07.2018 - 11.00 Boller DOPIN Salar

Sira No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	Îmza	e-Posta Adresi
	NociyeTofaka			DA	
	Omue DUMAN		-	Cruel	
	Bolond GuerAn Halilibrahim KUK	DS: KOS C.	a labetter	7.95	2
_	Halilibrahim KIK		Zincot Mit	Hali	
_	Ali ARIASLAN	Ari Kas sube	insoat wich	AS	
	FULYA FISEKCIOPLU	DSi KOS Sube	Jul. Zirat H	in FF	
	Kemal EPTÜRK	Dri KOS Sube	Zirad Mith.	Anj.	
	Sileymon Karanscar	2 2	Bellogon pur histor	por p	
	Hasan Bayr			TH	
	ismal KAUK	1		- Sil	
	Tane Get	<		1 del	
	Adem Sangel		<	Sund	
	Mehmert Say		D. J. noh	Aut	
	Degir Ogot		Gogb math	M.)
	Al. D. dal		Godbi mon	All	
_	Quali Ceta		Elk Tal	Ten	
	Musa Sorica		Sarica Meh	mlul.	
	Sebeho Aug Aller			S	
	Rykot SANCIDEL		Balling	hSan	
	M-Humil:		1	TO	5



	DOL 4 DEL MALINA	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplanti Katilim Formu	Sayfa No	5

17.07.2013 - 11.00 2016a Dyon Salow

Sira No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Hikmet Bayer			- Sel	
	Hasan saritoh			40	
	Mehmet Gina	C		445	
	Dem Ogator	43 56-		DO	-
	Ali Ziza Birl	1		44	
	BZEYICKOG			Sec	
_	Aden Argin			An	-
_	Ali la			all	
-	a kmithos			Car 10t	
	Mustafa Gillen			Att	
	Mahsin Koc			Asic	-
	Asphared Alita			no	
	Lysel Alchu	A		Ch y	2.
	Unal Saci			My (
	hosan 15			the	
	Hhmet Algo	0		845	-
	Omer Ebon.		_	To	
	Samoras h	arda?		2	-
		ORUS		NO	A
	Relan Lea	run		10	5



		DS	st 4. Bölge Müdürlü	iğü	Dokūman No	F 0 65 62 03
(S: 3)			-	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Те	plantı Katılım For	mu	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
		0	-		Sayfa No	6
	USU 2P EDEN BİF Hİ VE SAAT		: 0.01	Saluil -	Kepaili S 11.09 n Salon	ist Georgei T
Sıra No:	Adı	Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Mehme	+ Zoew			dit	Beleenger
	Unal	Forle			et to	Belaga
		Xugor.			to the	Belege
	Hilm	1 Zarle			tel	11111
	1 1	n sacilar			(MILE)	titte
		Lucikali Le Gez-			Marit	
	0	Et Dum			07:1	
		t Kog			Cartos	
		ahrnixa	N		at	Boktome
	Abdull	the Kardes			atter	-Sanitopalli
	HHAD	VEZquia			de-	AKHUNYA
_		Konako	50		this	Zijapokali
	musta	la Dorvas	1		Mby	Aydenlar
	ome	V BA	-		Full	-IXlester
		Ceybon	7		Air	merken
	Suder	yight			State	
		BALCH			the	
		Peniste			fitter	Regarite trenibados
	mucat	KAR	AMAN		n	trenihador



1			d	2	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
10	00.00	DS	il 4. Bölge Müdürlü	gu	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
1	- 31/				Rev.No-Tarihi	00
		10	plantı Katılım Forn	14	Sayfa No	3
TARİ YERİ			1204	Dard Ke	01.00 01.00 01.00	w Rozeni Don
Sıra No:	Adı S	Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	MESHTIG	GRAMON			Celler-	YEW I GACLAR
	ibrohn	Loroboro		-	æ	TASABIL
	MEHMET	hoemen			sung	SENISACLOR
	Melonet	PERZi			1161'	Japleh non Jose
		Goutter			gu-	Julher Wurshikingosz
	Jusuf.	Kiling				2 amount com
	Halan h	an			Huff &	actopalli
-	Osman	Han			and;	Santafalle
	Bayramy	KARDES			-78	Saritopalli
	0 /	telmaz			Ale	Santoalli
	Solin P					Sontopole
_	Veyse	Yusn			Curl.	orherse
-	Uer'	Yilden			the	orherse
_	Orhan				an	autill
	MU Hafe Osnon	9 900 0			and a	Je -
	Zeki	AYTAN P. I.			all	
		41770			g	0
_	Ranate M. 1	Kula		-	TAL	Cimencik
		in Baser			Som	BORTOMP
	Separt				Par	Goltome
	Jender	KARL			Multip	1-NETOME



	Det 4 Det - Mala Jaka	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
(DS;) -	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
	The base of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	8

1207.2018 - 11.00 Bolks Dam Salar

Sira No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Rasif pulat			Au	Torkma
	loop Dogodos			H	
	Mandup Korebyu			poq.	
	Ayton Batriez			Ame	
	ilknur Topbaş Gibin Erdepen			art	
_	Foolme Convilal			Enco	
_	Serley Parlak			and	
	Habibe Kaputurik			Sky-	
	Bysagiil Parkaly			the	
_	Sulten Gollos			Sal	
	Cavide Korabog			and	
	OKan KARAKOS			and	
-	Hamzauran Sertan Gener			-	
	Nicyan' gene	~		Altra	
	Infan filika	•	,	$ \rightarrow $	5
	Nichter Legen	,	E.	Neri	
	Yshel Turkoy	5		the	
	Yshel Turkoy Savdagil 24th Kande Aksoyli Chilya		6	the	
	Chilya			27	
	Chuiga U		3	/	



	Det / Del. Main Inve	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
(PS;) -	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu		9

2018/ Saluil Kpoli Sister Aleg Ponton 17.09.2018 (1.90 Bolker Dogen Solor)

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	AYZe Kille	NO 95h		At	
_ (Cematye Yok	\$		aus	
	Arzy can		_	An	
	Serpil Özgelik		-	Sinto	
-	Hedige Erel			He-	
	leyla Atan			Tey	
	Seyhan Ugare			Sheh	
	Aynur yalman Ayhan Uzkut			Ann	
	Hyhan Tw			Rin	1
	Fadimana Eng		<	The	
	Sengil Szter			SO	
	Ayse Topbas			A	
	Nermin Gili	t l C		Nhi-	
	Güldon ka			Gel	
	Hartice ipa			1 ton	
	Zekiye (THUR	
	Nurhan	Kaya	-20	AZ	
	Damieligand			And	
	5				•



	DOT A DELLA MELLE LEVE	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplanti Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	10
VILINO	. 2018 /	Sayla No	

: 2018/ :301 Saluit Kopoll Sister Frogr. Brith : 17.07.2018 _ 11.27 :Bolkon Davon Salon

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Emine Did	4.		110	
	Emine Pla Düriye Yak	sel		Dat	
	Purgerar			0	
-				•	
-					
-					
		- i -			
					-



	DST 4 PEL- MELE-IELE	Dokūman No	F 0 65 62 03
(DC.)	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
(Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplanti Katilim Formu Sayfa No	Sayfa No	11

: 2018/ Sal Salil Kepali Sister Proy Partu : 1709.2018 - 11.00 Bolka Dyan Salaw

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Gõrevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Mustafa Ekici	Etind Plan	Harita	itt	muscafachicios Ognicit.
	In byse	Phi J. Play	Fle Telen	TAS	
_	Muhammet Burak Dicinci	Proje Insant	Insoat Tele	Ant	mburakekincit dsi.pourtr.
	Nort BASKOCAGIL	Idari Isler	Bekal	dy	,
	A. yares Alle.		Macapor	X.	2:// 0.1
	Holil About	Ciftei	171	fort	Giller Mah.
	mehmet win		ici	all	Consburn mit
	muhmet Uru		ici	ang	Karonburn M
	Wehmet Sayra		191	Aluck	Bulgurlus Mats.
	OSMan Jok	ciffer	ici	4	mehlicet mil
	Yicel Son	Muhtor	cittei	Sur	Caller moh
	1.	Cifter	C As	and	
	Hassin soma	Ciffer	Gifter -	The	Cintes
	Erdogao Veale	Ciffer	areter	ES-	Conter
	Over Bater	Cafte=	aretrer -	Dur	Chiler
	AIR Calmak	espte=	Tretter	Ali	ember
	Alten Ata	Capter	areter :		conter
	Murst Biter				Conter
	ALT Katuren	Coffee			
	Arrf Askin	Cotter	iger a	The -	Conter



	DOL DEL MELE ISSE	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
(DC.)	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	n
VII NO	2010 /		

2018/ Jahr Kopalı Sister Drog Brits 19.09.2013 - 11.00 Bolker Dayon Salow

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Servet Adat	Cifter	aretra -	how	Conter
	RemainanSource	Gifter	A refaci	22	Tagaquil
	Muse Sourcen	Gifte:	Uvetr us	MAS	Toreg. 1
_	Mehmet Souron	GEFTGI	Vretrici	the	Tosozil
	Ozcakorobudak	Siftsi	Diretsci	Ø	(asagi)
_	Carbon Brang	Coffee	Ber -	Clee	Conter
	Hasan Polat	Cifter	archier	thene	Coler
	Ir fon Filiks		Sredic!	pt	Tasagil Tacasi
	Billaterebde		0	AD	Cargori
	Alf Usly	Crfter	aretar -	0.00	CEaler
	4250 Alderes	Cifter	arefier .	ANG	Conten
	Turput Aldeniz	Calles	arefrer :	700	Conter
	Hiseyn Galand	Ciffer	arefier.	Guo	Conter
	Ushund Bokensk	Ciffei	aretres	M	Center
	Ali Gezer	ciftei	Dretis	chat	Karabur MH
	Hanza Wzun		Drefice	SH	Careburner 1
	Hayri Goka	94	9 9	the	Asilog
	Hli Alagor		* **		Selcogaç
	OSmon Yasi'l	454		200	Meliçek



	DOL OPT MENTING	Dokūman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
(-31/-		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	13

2018/ Saluil Kapalı Sister Pros. Partt : 17.07.2013-11.00 Balkor Davan Saler

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Verkling	~~~	~ ~	24-	metal
	M. Ali Algon		6	Der	Beleagen
	Osier Aber			Quer	Beleng
	Yusuf Aboon			De	15-elagan
	mesdeference	- 20	4	qu	Karebus
	Digo Gener			1 Jam	Karaburn
	Beyron Gresor			RA	keroburun
	All Con			the-	Kangburn
	A li Riza Girgie	1	11	Kik	(Hg
				c uj	
	NUSVE	uzunla	-	11/10	as
	Alure Alia	-		and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s	Aziziye
	Hitbrahim Orka		a *	19H	Adabaj nak
-	Musta fa Eke			1181	fuzicuncest
	m. Emin allaviz			Je f	ophanize
	Fudinana kantas			EU	eregli
	Coron Getistana			de	oreg??
	Ause Senal Captor Celik			the	eregli
	Cagber Celik			Jes -	erepli

57



PSi	not a num ben tu tura	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
		Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	14

: 1709.2018-11.99 Bolken Dopon Salow

Stra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	Îmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Songill cetin kaya			Ede	
	Fahriye Yalono		<	50	
	Kiroz Kalkon			1º	
	Nozire Getinka	ya		Nunik	
	Gulary Tag			(œ	e
	Saringegut	-tasel		5	
	Sevdiye gala	pn	0.1.	South	1
- 7	Fadimona Bull	ő/	tiftg1	My	
-	Ebra Ertelin Main		0	from -	
-	todae torswork			Mar	7
	Halilibrahim To menmet polat	fecco		alet	
	Fahrettincobil		-	Jal a	
	Hadise Cabit			itse	
	Uperstato Diburen			F	
-	Shweldwinter			Aur	
	Jehra Toston		,	Hto	
	Necla Erbar	,		N	/
	Selen KEERET			gu	
	Hulya Gilderic			1 -	1
(Oplen Tyna			Bury	5



		DS	d 4. Bölge Müdürlü	ăŭ	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
		D	a a bolge madalla	P	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
1	91/	Te	plantı Katılım Form	nu	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
			plant ratinii For		Sayfa No	15
YILNO KONUSU TALEP EDEN BIRIM/ÜNITE TARIHI VE SAATI YERI 2018/ Sol Salil Hopali Sisteri Rog. 10 Sol Salil Hopali Sisteri Rog. 10 Sol Salil Hopali Sisteri Rog. 10 Bolker Dipon Salor						in Rog. Ion 14
Sira No:	Adı	Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	2	5.1			atte	
	Deniz				(parties	0
	Kadri	je Ugu	r lu		tuts	/
	21	15		-	AA	
	Jurdone	Locagil			SITY	
	Seval	Isik			Julia	
	Ada	Cibile			Sin	•
	0	lagton			Q	
	Gul 2	0			Mad	
					10	
		Ceylor			A	
	N/	Orgetik			C	
	Jerop			-	Juni	
	Meetery	TORAMAN			DA.	
	HOCER	SPRET	-		All.	-
	Facture	a Gungor			45	1
		Lececi			Aturt	+
		+ kilig			an	
		Deryan			illit	
		in meda			Sel	
	Daras				Aur	>
	11	hour Gilli			1	
		let kon	-		A	
	There	ict KOAL	£		The second	1
1	MARS	alens	h h l		11/20	



De.	DOL DEL MELE INC.	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
	T	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	16
VII /NO	2018 /		

: 2018/ Sol Salvil Lopal Stora Proj. Partix : 1707.2018 - 11.00 : Bolkon Doyon Salar

Sıra No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	İmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Mus- the Each	t.		de la	
	Muhammed Silis	es.		and	
	Isman 7 Allo			they	
	nustata vyse	/	~	Aff	
	Saban Corn			X	
	Sami Con		-	and	
	Bahtisen lan			But	
	muhammet	Sulat	5	egie	
	M. Murat ERDis			- Cher	
	Aydy CIBIK			Aler	
	SUUL SPELAM			- AA	
	Seda OCALAN 1201			States	
	Stel KARAKOS			Sul.	
	Kiroz ACAR			die	
	Ause Akail			Alle	
	Jongul South			Jul	
	Yates Getintos			SAT	
	Lieleyho Dord			AND	
	Pontail Son	e{	6	A	
	Foldime to 2	<u> </u>		Burnd -	



De.	Det 4 PH Maladasa	Doküman No	F 0 65 62 03
	DSİ 4. Bölge Müdürlüğü	Yayım Tarihi	20/05/2009
	T	Rev.No-Tarihi	00
	Toplantı Katılım Formu	Sayfa No	12

Sol Solvil Kopali Silova Silteri Ro. Bit 19.09.2018-11.00 Bolko Dyon Salen

Sira No:	Adı Soyadı	Birimi / Ünitesi	Görevi	Îmza	e-Posta Adresi
	Than Elitete Roman Cerry Elog Com		Cital	J.A	2
	Roman Caren		lival	277-	
-4	Elog Cran		Citte!		-
	~				
_					